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1. PUBLIC ENTITY’S GENERAL INFORMATION 

Registered Name:    Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd
Registration Number:    2001/025832/07
Physical Address:    26 Rabe Street
                                           Polokwane
                                           0700
Postal Address:    Private Bag X 9554
                                       Polokwane
                                       0700
Telephone Number:    015 284 4600
Fax Number:     015 284 4704
Website Address:    www.ral.co.za
External Auditors:    AGSA  
Bankers:     ABSA  
Acting Company/ Board Secretary:  Mr. Mattews Mflatela

2. LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS

AGSA  Auditor General of South Africa
MEC   Member of Executive Council
BBBEE  Broad Based Black  Economic Empowerment
ACEO  Acting Chief Executive Officer
ACFO  Acting Chief Financial Officer
PFMA Public Finance Management Act
TR     Treasury Regulations
MTEF  Medium Term Expenditure Framework
SMME Small Medium and Micro Enterprises
SCM  Supply Chain Management
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FOREWORD BY THE MEC
Mr Jeremiah Ndou, MPL 
MEC: Department Of Public Works, Roads & Infrastructure

“...we can say without a shadow of doubt 
that it has performed beyond expectations 
with regard to the progress made since the 
dawn of democracy.”
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3. FOREWORD BY THE MEC

The 2013/14 Roads Agency Limpopo Annual Report report presents a huge step in the life of the construction of the road infrastructure in the province of 
Limpopo. Since its establishment as the Agency responsible for the construction of road network in the province, we can say without a shadow of doubt that it 
has performed beyond expectations with regard to progress made since the dawn of democracy. RAL inherited poor roads from the previous regime and had to hit 
the ground running in changing the complexion of the province’s roads into what it is today. The Agency has indeed succeeded, but challenges still remain taking 
into account that most of the province’s roads are still poor and need to be transformed to match the modern day demands of economic development.

The past couple of years have not been smooth sailing for the Agency, having operated with the disorganised Board of Directors. We however, working together with 
the Administrator Section 100 (b) in terms of the country’s constitution, acted swiftly by appointing the permanent Board of Directors tasked with ensuring stability 
within RAL. I am proud to report that the work done by the Board during their short stint is impressive, having implemented projects in different parts of the province. 
Let me also hasten to say that with the current Board of Directors, made up of men and  women with expertise, one is sure that the challenges that used to plague 
the Agency will be a thing of the past. Focus will now be on key infrastructure projects aimed at improving the conditions of the province’s roads.

In moving Limpopo forward through the construction of quality roads infrastructure, we remain steadfast that our work will continue to inspire every resident of this 
province by contributing towards the socio economic development of their livelihoods. Roads play one of the leading roles in this current administration through its 
infrastructure built programmes, a key factor in our country’s economic blue print, the National Development Plan. It is through the construction of roads that we can 
economically connect our cities and villages and make transport of both goods and commuters a smooth sailing exercise.

As I submit this report to the people of Limpopo, I can only plead them to give us time to continue bringing them quality roads that will be envy to the best there is 
to offer. As we have entered into the second phase of our transition, I assure our people that everything that we will be doing, will be in their best interest. Our people 
have been waiting for far too long and now is the time to put our shoulder to the wheel and move Limpopo forward.

I, Azwinndini Jeremiah Dingaan Ndou have the pleasure of presenting this 2013/14 report to the people of Limpopo.

.......................................................................................
Honourable Azwinndini Jeremiah Dingaan Ndou
Member Of The Executive Council
Department Of Public Works, Roads & Infrastructure
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STATEMENT BY THE 
CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD
Mr Matome Ralebipi

“Given RAL’s core business, our major task 
was to ensure that the Agency complies with 
all the relevant pieces of law and conducts its 
business in a distinct and acceptable manner 
in line with best business practice.”
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4. STATEMENT BY THE CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD

The need to provide quality road infrastructure services to our most valued stakeholders-the people of Limpopo cannot be overemphasised. Roads Agency 
Limpopo must be at the centre of Limpopo’s economic development. 

Our responsibility as the Board of Directors is to ensure that RAL, once again, becomes agile and responsive to the road infrastructure challenges faced by the people 
of Limpopo. We are extremely concerned about the Province’s continued loss of many quality roads due to rain and floods. We also believe that the insufficient funds 
relating to road maintenance largely contributes to the worsening of current problems. The Board is determined to work together with the Section 100 (1)(b) team in 
order to find a sustainable solution to address the prevailing challenges. 

Upon our appointment as the Board of Directors on the 02 April 2014, we together with the Administration team, have made it a priority that RAL’s governance 
systems and structures must improve. Given RAL’s core business, our major task was to ensure that the Agency complies with all the relevant pieces of law and 
conducts its business in a distinct and acceptable manner in line with best business practice. We will leave no stone unturned in ensuring that governance is upheld 
at all times and RAL is free of corruption and malpractice. These are some of the key efforts that will ensure that we bring back what was once the best performing 
Agency in the Province...Roads Agency Limpopo. 

The Board has identified the following 8 key priorities:
• Establish and strengthen Internal Audit;
• Ensure credible and transparent procurement process with adherence to governance values;
• Fearlessly tackle corruption and malpractice;
• Creation of Jobs in short term for youth,woman,disabled and our veterans;
• Dealing with Provincial Road infrastructure backlog; 
• Developing strong partnership with business sector and community in building of roads;
• Deliberately support and build emerging black contractors and black business in the Province; and
• Increase revenue base of RAL in line with the RAL Act in order to do more roads.

On behalf of the Board, let me appreciate the good work that has already been done by the Sec 100 intervention team. We, undoubtedly accept the fact that there 
is still a lot of work to be done and great challenges ahead hence our continued endless collective efforts. We thank the management and staff of RAL for their 
contribution towards a better RAL that we will all be proud of.

Lastly, we call upon all our stakeholders to continue to work together with us in making the Limpopo roads better. 

..............................................................
Mr Matome Ralebipi
Chairperson of the Board
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OVERVIEW BY THE CEO
Ms. Molatelo Motsepe  Acting Chief Executive Officer

“RAL has in the past triumphed over 
difficult conditions including natural 
disasters, by rebuilding destroyed road 
infrastructure thereby reconnecting 
communities with the rest of the province.”
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5. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OVERVIEW

Roads Agency Limpopo (RAL) has completed yet another chapter of its life. What a daunting year it has been. 

The Agency has received adverse audit opinion for the year under review. This is a contradiction of the efforts that we have put in trying to improve financial audit 
performance from the financial year 2012/13. Most of audit matters which influenced the opinion relate to asset management, classification and ownership of prior 
years. We still have a lot of work to do in this area, in order to get things right.

The Agency has managed to spend significant (79%) portion of the allocated budget in the year under review. This is a huge achievement given the recent historical 
challenges we had faced as an organisation. 

It is important for all of us, never to forget the bigger role RAL has to play to improve the lives of the residents of Limpopo Province. Our stakeholders rely on us and 
other state organs for easy movements and the economic development of the Province.  We therefore cannot afford to let them down. We must continue to connect 
our communities to schools, clinics and other areas of socio economic development. We must always remember that the people we serve cannot wait endlessly to be 
provided with services. It therefore becomes critical that we continue to act and perform in a manner that instils confidence in our valued stakeholders. 

The construction industry continues to see scarcity of civil engineers and is not able to afford and attract those available to join public service.  RAL therefore has 
the responsibility to support the young and upcoming engineers who are still pursuing their studies or have completed them in partnership with institution of higher 
learning in the province. This will, undoubtedly, benefit the Agency and the country in future.  

I want to sincerely express my heartfelt gratitude for the hard work RAL employees have displayed throughout the year under review, the Board for their immeasurable 
support and the shareholder for providing direction. We would not have been able to make considerable achievements and progress if it was not for the support and 
dedicated staff. 

Once more, thank you!

..............................................................
Ms. Molatelo Motsepe
Acting Chief Executive Officer 
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6. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

6.1   Vision 
To be the leading path for Limpopo’s sustainable growth.

6.2  Mission
• To provide sustainable roads infrastructure network;
• To link the economic growth areas;
• To spearhead the province through innovative leadership;
• To be an enabling, supportive and learning organisation;
• To be excellent and efficient in the culture of service delivery; and
• To remain dedicated ethical, responsive and proactive staff.

6.3 Values
• Commitment

    We are committed to serving the province with pride

• Reliability
    We offer reliable, safe and economic roads infrastructure

• Efficiency
    We will go an extra mile in serving our communities 

• Accountability
    We remain accountable to all our stakeholders

• Transparency
    We are transparent in both our internal and external business processes

• Excellence
    We exceed expectations

• Teamwork
    Together for better roads

• Diversity
    We value and embrace diversity within the work context

7. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES

Roads Agency Limpopo is a statutory body established under an Act of Parliament-the Limpopo Province Roads Agency Proprietary Limited and Provincial Roads 
Amendment Act 03 of 2001. The Agency, being a public company, has also been registered in terms of the Companies Act No. 61 of 1973. Its registered name is the 
Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd. The Agency has been operational since 1999.
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RAL BOARD MEMBERS AND THE SHAREHOLDER

    From left to right: MJ.Boshielo, M Ralebipi (Chairperson), H. Kekana, M. Motsepe (ACEO), J Ndou (Shareholder), Adv. Bilankulu, MK Machaba, WNG Moleko, R. Shingange.
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PART B PERFOMANCE INFORMATION
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1. AUDITOR’S REPORT: PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES
    

  Refer to the Audited Financial Statements (page 51). 

2. SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS

2.1 Service Delivery Environment
The Province currently has 21 909 kilometres of roads out of which 7 461 is tarred and 14 448 is gravel. Roads Agency Limpopo relies on government funding.  Despite the 
limited annual allocation of funds, RAL is committed to working tirelessly to eradicate the backlog of gravel or dirt provincial roads in Limpopo.
 
Due to limited funding, the roads network in the Limpopo Province has been deteriorating. The Province continues to loose good roads due to lack of maintenance 
funding. RAL will endeavour to execute its mandate within the available financial resources. 

2.2 Organisational environment 
At the end 2013/14 financial year, RAL had 74 employees. A large number of these employees are project managers whose role is to ensure that RAL’s core business 
imperatives are adequately addressed. The Agency will soon be realigning its organogram and personnel in order to ensure that it becomes agile and responsive to service 
delivery challenges. 

There are a number of strategic vacant positions which RAL intends to fill in the near future. The negative impact made by the non-filling of these positions is huge and 
require that we move with the necessary speed to ensure that there is no vacuum in terms of service delivery. Once these strategic positions are filled, the Agency will 
be able to implement some of its projects with ease. 

2.3 Key policy developments and legislative changes
There were no legislative changes in the financial year under review. RAL was put under administration in the financial year 2011/12 in terms of Section 100(1)(b) of the 
Constitution of South Africa.
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3. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY PROGRAMME/ ACTIVITY/ OBJECTIVE

3.1 PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION
Purpose: To provide the support required in order to effectively manage and deliver efficient service to the people of Limpopo

PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION
SUB-PROGRAMME 1.1: Corporate Support

Strategic 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator

2012/13
Actual 

Achievement 

2013/14
Annual 
Target

2013/14
Actual 

Achievements

2013/14
Deviations from 

planned target to 
actual achievement

Reasons for 
Deviation

Planned 
Interventions

Expenditure 
per Target

R’000

Provide 
effective, 
efficient and 
systematic 
corporate 
support and 
financial services 
to the Agency

Number  of funded 
vacant critical posts 
advertised and filled 
in accordance with 
Employment Equity 
Targets

This is a 
new Key 
Performance 
Indicator

2 positions:

(CEO & CFO)
None (2)

The previous Board 
was dissolved in 
October 2013 and 
a new Board was 
appointed in April 
2014.

The Board has been 
appointed therefore 
critical positions will 
be filled by the end 
of second quarter.

None, normal 
operational 
task.

Amount of revenue 
collected

R2 399 755 
Billboard rental

R892 140 
approval fees

R4 382 
million

R16,289 million R11,907 million Interest Earned None
None, normal 
operational 
task.

Number of sessions 
conducted on 
implementation of 
Risks Mitigation 
Plans

This is a 
new Key 
Performance 
Indicator

4 Reviews 1 Review 3 reviews

Due to delays in the 
appointment of RAL 
Board, Committees of 
the Board could not be 
constituted. 

The Board will 
soon finalise 
the constitution 
of the Audit & 
Risk Committee. 
Currently, Risk 
Management 
processes are 
handled by Internal 
Audit Unit

None, normal 
operational 
task
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3.2 PROGRAMME 2: TRANSPORT INFRASTRUCTURE

SUB-PROGRAMME 2.1: PLANNING

Strategic 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator

2012/13
Actual 

Achievement 

2013/14
Annual 
Target

2013/14
Actual 

Achievements

2013/14
Deviations from 

planned target to 
actual achievement

Reasons for 
Deviation

Planned 
Interventions

Expenditure 
per Target

R’000

Expand and 
maintain 
sustainable 
Transport 
Infrastructure 
within the 
Province

Project list for 
2014/15 approved

2013/14 
Approved project 
list

Approved 
Project List

Approved Project 
List for 2014/15

None None None
None, normal 
operational 
task

Purpose: To promote accessibility and the safe affordable movement of people, goods and services through the delivery and maintenance of Roads Infrastructure that is sustainable, 
integrated and environmentally sensitive and supports economic growth of the Province.

SUB-PROGRAMME 2.2 DESIGN

Strategic 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator

2012/13
Actual 

Achievement 

2013/14
Annual Target

2013/14
Actual 

Achievements

2013/14
Deviations from 

planned target to 
actual achievement

Reasons for 
Deviation

Planned 
Interventions

Expenditure per 
Target
R’000

Expand and 
maintain 
sustainable 
Transport 
Infrastructure 
within the 
Province

Number of 
infrastructure 
designs for 2014/15 
completed

This is a 
new Key 

Performance 
Indicator

13 Completed 
Infrastructure 
Designs

14 Designs 1 Design
One project was 
added at a later 
stage.

None R17,633,805,11
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SUB-PROGRAMME 2.3 CONSTRUCTION

Strategic Objective Performance 
Indicator

2012/13
Actual 

Achievement 

2013/14
Annual 
Target

2013/14
Actual 

Achievements

2013/14
Deviations from 

planned target to 
actual achievement

Reasons for Deviation Planned 
Interventions

Expenditure per 
Target
R’000

Expand and 
maintain 
sustainable 
Transport 
Infrastructure 
within the Province

Number of 
kilometres of gravel 
roads upgraded to 
surface roads at end 
of the year

33 km 94km 57,36km (36,64km)
Variation Orders (VO) 
approved in the last 
quarter of 2013/14

To be completed by 
Q2 of 2014/15

R80,043,261.66

Number of 
kilometres of 
surfaced roads 
rehabilitated at 
end of the year

77.9km 37km 28km (9km)
Delays in approvals of 
Variation Orders in the 
last quarter of 2013/14

Work to be 
completed by Q2 of 
2014/15

R31,742,360.67

Number of bridges 
constructed 4 bridges 5 4 bridges (1 bridge)

Additional funds 
to complete T530 
approved in February 
2014 after a long 
suspension.

Bridge on T530 to 
be completed in Q1 
of 2014/15

Amount 
included in the 
expenditure for 
road upgrading.
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SUB-Programme 2.4 MAINTENANCE

Strategic Objective Performance 
Indicator

2012/13
Actual 

Achievement 

2013/14
Annual 
Target

2013/14
Actual 

Achievements

2013/14
Deviations from 

planned target to 
actual achievement

Reasons for Deviation Planned 
Interventions

Expenditure per 
Target
R’000

Expand and 
maintain 
sustainable 
Transport 
Infrastructure 
within the Province

Percentage of 
surfaced network in 
very good condition

2012/13 Traffic 
counts report

8% 18% 10% None None
None, normal 
operational task.

Percentage if 
surfaced network in 
good condition

2012/13 Traffic 
counts report

47% 34% 13% None None
None, normal 
operational task.

Percentage of 
surfaced network in 
fair condition

2012/13 Traffic 
counts report

38% 28% 9% None None
None, normal 
operational task.

Percentage of 
surfaced network in 
poor condition

2012/13 Traffic 
counts report

5% 13% 8% None None
None, normal 
operational task.

Percentage of 
surfaced network in 
very poor condition

2012/13 Traffic 
counts report

1% 6% 5% None None
None, normal 
operational task.

Percentage of 
gravel in very good 
condition

2012/13 Traffic 
counts report

5% 0,00 2%

Inadequate funding 
& floods impacted 
negatively on the 
conditions of roads

Allocate more 
funds for 
maintenance

None, normal 
operational task.

Percentage of gravel 
network in good 
condition

2012/13 Traffic 
counts report

14% 2% 12%

Inadequate funding 
& floods impacted 
negatively on the 
conditions of roads

Allocate more 
funds for 
maintenance

None, normal 
operational task.

Percentage of gravel 
network in fair 
condition

2012/13 Traffic 
counts report

35% 8% 27%

Inadequate funding 
& floods impacted 
negatively on the 
conditions of roads

Allocate more 
funds for 
maintenance

None, normal 
operational task.

Percentage of gravel 
network in poor 
condition

2012/13 Traffic 
counts report

40% 68% 28%
Roads were heavily 
damaged due to 
floods

Allocate more 
funds for 
maintenance

None, normal 
operational task.
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SUB-Programme 2.4 Maintenance (Continued)

Strategic 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator

2012/13
Actual 

Achievement 

2013/14
Annual 
Target

2013/14
Actual 

Achievements

2013/14
Deviations from 

planned target to 
actual achievement

Reasons for 
Deviation

Planned 
Interventions

Expenditure per Target
R’000

Expand and 
maintain 
sustainable 
Transport 
Infrastructure 
within the 
Province

Percentage of 
gravel network in 
very poor condition

2012/13 Traffic 
counts report

6% 23% 4%
Roads were heavily 
damaged due to 
floods

Allocate more funds 
for maintenance

None, normal 
operational task.

Percentage of 
bridges in very good 
condition

2012/13 Traffic 
counts report

37% 36% (1%)

Inadequate funding 
& floods impacted 
negatively on the 
conditions of bridges

Allocate more funds 
for maintenance

None, normal 
operational task.

Percentage of 
bridges in good 
condition

2012/13 Traffic 
counts report

57% 58% 1,70% None None
None, normal 
operational task.

Percentage of 
bridges in fair 
condition

2012/13 Traffic 
counts report

4% 4,70% 0,70% None None
None, normal 
operational task.

Percentage of 
bridges in poor 
condition

2012/13 Traffic 
counts report

1% 0,30% 0,70% None None
None, normal 
operational task.

Number of 
compliance on 
land use activities 
controlled and 
reported.

Percentage of 
bridges in very poor 
condition

2012/13 Traffic 
counts report

1% 0,00% 1% None None
None, normal 
operational task.

A number of 
non-compliance 
activities reported

All non-
compliance 
activities 
reported

446
596 notices 
issued

150 None None
None, normal 
operational task.
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SUB-PROGRAMME 2.5 EMPOWERMENT (EPWP Coordination & Monitoring)

Strategic 
Objective Performance Indicator 2012/13

Actual Achievement 

2013/14
Annual 
Target

2013/14
Actual 

Achievements

2013/14
Deviations from 

planned target to 
actual achievement

Reasons for Deviation Planned 
Interventions

Expenditure per 
Target
R’000

Expand and 
maintain 
sustainable 
Transport 
Infrastructure 
within the 
Province

Number of people 
employed per annum 
(cumulative)

This is a new 
Key Performance 
Indicator

308 840 532

Unbundled work 
approved and 
therefore more people 
were employed.

None R1,149,670.61

Number of work 
opportunities created 
per annum (cumulative)

This is a new 
Key Performance 
Indicator

294 312 18

Unbundled work 
approved late and re-
duced number of work 
opportunities created.

None
Amount included 
in total above.

Number of youth 
(16-35) employed per 
annum (cumulative)

This is a new 
Key Performance 
Indicator

34 530 496

Unbundled work 
approved and 
therefore more people 
were employed.

None
Amount included 
in total above.

Number of employment 
days created per annum 
(cumulative)

This is a new 
Key Performance 
Indicator

184 240 56

Unbundled work 
approved late and 
reduced number of 
employment days.

None

Amount included 
in total above.

Number of women 
employed per annum 
(cumulative)

This is a new 
Key Performance 
Indicator

154 312 63

Unbundled work 
approved and 
therefore more women 
were employed

Amount included 
in total above.

Number of PLWD 
employed per annum 
(cumulative)

This is a new 
Key Performance 
Indicator

7 1 (6)
Less number of PLWD 
were employed

Amount included 
in total above.

Number of people 
trained per annum 
(cumulative)

100% of workers 
trained

216 130 (86)
Less people were 
trained for the unbun-
dled work

None None
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OUTPUTS FOR 2013/2014

RAL 
No. District Action Contractor

Output (km or no. of)

Planned 1 April Now km 
upgrade

km 
rehab

bridges
km 

upgrade
km 

rehab
bridges

km 
upgrade

km 
rehab

bridges
km 

upgrade
km 

rehab
bridges

km 
upgrade

km 
rehab

bridges
km 

upgrade
km 

rehab
bridges

km 
upgrade

km 
rehab

bridges Q1 Q1 Q1 Q2 Q2 Q2 Q3 Q3 Q3 Q4 Q4 Q4

T527 Capricon
Upgrading of road 

(Gravel to tar)
Lonerock/

Reatseba JV
18.80

T530 Mopani
Upgrading of road 

(Gravel to tar)
Mac P 19.00 4 12.40 3 12.40 3

T629 Mopani
Upgrading of road 

(Gravel to tar)

Quality Plant 
Hire/Expectra 

JV
14.50 1 14.46 1 7.00 7.46 1

T539B Sekhukhune
Upgrading of road 

(Gravel to tar)
Senyati 10.00

T628 Sekhukhune
Upgrading of road 

(Gravel to tar)

Esorfranki 
Civils/

Balekane JV
22.00 1 1 19.60 1 16.60 2.40 0.60

T631A Sekhukhune
Upgrading of road 

(Gravel to tar)

Maphutha 
Building 

Construction
10.00 1 10.00 1 10.00 1

T637 Vhembe
Upgrading of road 

(Gravel to tar)
4.50 1 5.00

T571D Waterberg
Upgrading of road 

(Gravel to tar)
Edwin 

Construction
85.00 44.00 72.00 10.70

T627 Waterberg
Upgrading of road 

(Gravel to tar)
Selby 

Construction
16.50 2 12.90 2 2 2.20 0.00

T632 Waterberg
Upgrading of road 

(Gravel to tar)

Seakodibeng 
Axton Matrix 

JV
9.30 8.60 9.30 0.70

Capricon

Mopani 7.00 7.46 1

Sekhukhune 16.60 2.40 10.60 1

Vhembe

Waterberg 0.70 2 23.00 2.20 5.00 10.70

24.30 2 240 23.00 20.26 5.00 2 10.70

Total 58 km upgraded 28 km rehabilitated 4 bridges
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4. REVENUE COLLECTION

2013/2014
Sources of revenue Estimate Actual 

Amount Collected
(Over)/Under Collection

R’000 R’000 R’000

Interest 618 12 073 -11 454

Application for Access Roads 400 376 30

Application for billboards 120 111 9

Application for Land development 170 166 6

Rental Billboards 2 800 2956 -131

Tender Documents 160 159 1

Total 4 268 15 808 -11 540

In the year under review the revenue was collected in line with the targets except for Interest which was over collected due to a process of verifying Variation Orders which meant that 
payment of projects was delayed thus holding cash that earned the entity interest more than budgeted.

4.1 Capital investment 

2012/13 2013/14

Infrastructure projects Budget Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure Budget Actual 

Expenditure
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

1 167 502 637 786 529 716 443 943

344 841

79% of the total 
allocation

99 102   
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PART C GOVERNANCE
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1. INTRODUCTION
Parliament, the Executive and the Accounting Authority of the public entity are responsible for corporate governance.

2. PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES 
Roads Agency Limpopo is, from time to time, expected to account to the Portfolio Committee for Roads and Transport regarding the delivery of its mandate as stipulated in the RAL’s 
founding Act. During the financial year under review, there were several meetings during which the Agency was invited to present quarterly performance reports. 

3. EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY
The founding Act of Roads Agency Limpopo requires RAL to, annually, submit its Annual Performance Plan (APP) to the Executive Authority for approval. The APP outlines the 
planned targets and time lines during which the targets must have been achieved. The APP for 2014/15 financial year was approved on 11-02-2014

4. THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY / BOARD 
The Board is the custodian of corporate governance and it is responsible for the strategic direction and control of RAL. The Board ensures that the Agency is a responsible corporate 
entity and complies with relevant laws, regulations and standards.

THE ROLE OF THE BOARD 
Board members shall act jointly when discharging their duties and no Board members shall have any authority to severally perform any act on behalf of the RAL unless specifically 
authorised or requested by the Board or authorised nominees of the Board.  Board members shall be jointly accountable for the decisions of the Board.

Board members have a legal obligation to act in the best interests of the RAL, to act with due care and diligence in discharging their duties and to avoid and declare conflict of 
interests when they arise and to account for any advantages gained in discharging their duties on behalf of the RAL. Board members shall act with integrity and shall not misuse 
their positions to obtain personal benefits.  The Board will base its decisions on policy, strategy, facts and analysis and not on prejudice.

Board members shall not disclose to any person except as provided for in the RAL Act, any information relating to the affairs of the RAL, or a client of the RAL, acquired in the 
performance of his or her duties or the exercise of his or her functions, or any other information acquired by him or her in the course of the participation in the activities of the RAL 
unless if authorised to do so as provided for in the RAL Act. 

BOARD CHARTER
The Board Charter was approved by the Accounting Authority in the year under review.
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Composition of the Board 

Name
Designation 

(in terms of the Public 
Entity Board structure)

Date appointed Date 
resigned Qualifications Area of 

Expertise

Board
Directorships (List 

the entities)

Other 
Committees 

or Task 
Teams  

(e.g: Audit 
committee 

/ Ministerial 
task team)

No. of Meetings 
attended

Mr P Tshisevhe Board Chairperson July 2011 Sept 2013 BPROC, LLB,LLM Legal
Roads Agency 
Limpopo

Ms MM Maponya 
CA (SA)

Board Member July 2011 09 Sept 2013 CA (SA)
Financial 
Management

Roads Agency 
Limpopo

Audit & Risk 
Committee

Mr PR Masihela Board Member July 2011 Aug 2013 BCOM Degree Auditing
Roads Agency 
Limpopo

Audit & Risk 
Committee

Mr T Makofane Board Member July 2011 09 Sept 2013
Master in 
Construction 
management

Construction
Roads Agency 
Limpopo

Contacts & 
Planning

Ms M Motsepe
Acting Chief Executive 
Officer

June 2013 -
BCom (Hons) 
Accounting

Financial 
Management

Roads Agency 
Limpopo

Mr TL Mazibuko Board member February 2013 Sept 2013

BA –Philosophy
BA-Honours in 
international 
Relations

Roads Agency 
Limpopo

Mr JR Bilankulu Board Member March 2013 09 Sept 2013
LLB
B-Juris

Legal
Roads Agency 
Limpopo

Mr. MM Mokonyama Accounting Authority Sept 2013 - - -
Roads Agency 
Limpopo
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Board Committees 
Committee No. of meetings held No. of members Name of members

Audit and Risk 2 meetings 3 members Ms MM Maponya, Mr TL Mazibuko, Mr PR Masehela

Human Resources and Remuneration

Contracts and Planning

Name Remuneration Other allowance Other re-imbursements Total

MP Tshisevhe R399 000 R23 914 R422 914

M Maponya R315 500 R318 675 R29 671 R663 846

TM Makofane R320 500 R20 148 R340 648

TL Mazibuko R258 500 R21 318 R279 818

5. RISK MANAGEMENT
The Board has committed the Roads Agency Limpopo to a process of risk management 
that is aligned to the principles of good corporate governance, as supported by the Public 
Finance Management Act (PFMA), Act 1 of 1999 as amended by Act 29 of 1999.

Risk management is recognised as an integral part of responsible management and 
the Agency therefore adopts a comprehensive approach to the management of risk.  
The features of this process are outlined in the Agency’s Risk Management Strategy.  
It is expected that all divisions, operations and processes will be subject to the risk 
management strategy.  It is the intention that these divisions will work together in a 
consistent and integrated manner, with the overall objective of reducing risk, as far as 
reasonably practical.

Effective risk management is imperative to the Agency to fulfil its mandate and the 
service delivery expectations of the public and the performance expectations within the 
Agency.
The realization of our strategic plan depends on RAL being able to take calculated risks in 
a way that does not jeopardize the direct interests of stakeholders.  Sound management 
of risk will enable RAL to anticipate and respond to changes in our service delivery 
environment, as well as make informed decisions under conditions of uncertainty.

An entity-wide approach to risk management will be adopted by the Agency, which 
means that every key risk in each part of the Agency will be included in a structured and 
systematic process of risk management. The risk management processes will become 
embedded into the Agency’s systems and processes, ensuring that our responses to risk 
remain current and dynamic. All risk management efforts will be focused on supporting 
the Agency’s objectives. Equally, RAL will comply with relevant legislation, and fulfil the 
expectations of employees, communities and other stakeholders in terms of corporate 
governance.

6. INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT
The Internal Control Unit was not in place in the financial year under review. To meet 
its responsibility with respect to providing reliable financial information, Roads Agency 
Limpopo maintains financial and operational systems of internal control. These 
controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are concluded 
in accordance with prescribed regulations, that the assets are adequately safeguarded 
against material loss of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposal and those transactions 
are properly authorised and recorded.
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7. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES

The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for ensuring that RAL’s internal audit 
function is independent and has the necessary resources and authority to: 
review the internal control structure, including financial controls and accounting 
systems, as well as evaluating whether the system of internal control is adequate to 
manage critical risks;

• review the internal audit function, including its written charter, objectives,      
       goals and staffing plans, as well as evaluating whether the function is performed  
       satisfactorily;
•  evaluate whether management demonstrates and stimulates the necessary      
       respect for the internal control structures;
• oversee and manage the total internal audit function to ensure that: 
       - the internal audit performance goals are achieved; 
       - risks are identified; 
       - specific issues requiring attention are highlighted

8. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Among other pieces of law that guide the Agency’s operations is the PFMA and RAL 
Act. RAL has the responsibility to comply with all applicable laws and regulations.

9. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION  

Roads Agency Limpopo has established a Fraud and Corruption hotline, which is a 
platform on which concerns relating to fraud and ethics can be reported. The Hotline is 
a telephonic tool which employees and the public at large can freely use to report any 
fraud and corruption activities and remain anonymous. This hotline has been effective 
since the year 2011.  

Furthermore, the Agency, in its procurement processes, continue, to give due regard 
to the provisions set out in the Public Finance Management Act of 1999, Treasury 
Regulations and Framework for Supply Chain Management and related pieces of 
legislation.

10. MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST

All employees of Roads Agency Limpopo are required to complete the declaration forms 
within which they declare if they have any business interest. The Chief Executive Officer 
has the responsibility to approve the submissions on declaration of interest.

11. CODE OF CONDUCT 

RAL operates on a solid policy platform that covers all areas of the agency. The Board 
pays particular attention to the effectiveness and relevance of policies, considering all 
policies before implementation, including ensuring that management complies with 
relevant laws and regulations.   

12. HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

The Agency ensures that all the projects that are implemented comply with all the 
statutory requirements of Environmental Management, Health & Safety regulations. 
This is done by ensuring that all projects have environmental authorisations and permits 
from stakeholder departments. In addition, we also ensure that there is compliance 
monitoring for appointed contractors to meet the Safety, Health and Environmental 
Management obligations.

The major challenge during execution of projects is the landownership disputes in the 
borrow pits areas and this is addressed by strictly adhering to the provisions of the 
law and intensive stakeholder engagement processes with  the social and Institutional 
Development (S.I.D) unit at RAL. The process of stakeholder engagement ensures that 
information dissemination on projects is done throughout the project cycle in order to 
create awareness within communities and amongst project participants.

13. COMPANY/BOARD SECRETARY

The entity had no Company Secretary during the 2013/14 financial year. The Board of 
RAL had requested one of the employees to assist with minutes taking during 2013/14. 
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14. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Agency offers bursaries to disadvantaged students pursuing Civil Engineering 
and Construction related qualifications and Learnership Programme. Upon completion 
of their studies, bursary holders are offered an opportunity for experiential training. 
Where possible the Agency has been able to absorb some students who completed 
their studies.

15. AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee is pleased to present its report for the financial year ended 31 
March 2014. The committee has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as 
outlined in the Audit Committee Charter. The Committee has discharged its affairs in 
compliance with this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained 
therein namely:

• reviewing the internal control structure, including financial controls and 
accounting systems, as well as evaluating whether the system of internal control is 
adequate to manage critical risks;
• reviewing the internal audit function, including its written charter, objectives, 
goals and staffing plans, as well as evaluating whether the function is performed 
satisfactorily;
• evaluating whether management demonstrates and stimulates the necessary 
respect for the internal control structures;
• overseeing and managing the total internal audit function to ensure that: 
       - the internal audit performance goals are achieved; 
       - risks are identified; 
       - specific issues requiring attention are highlighted; 

Audit Committee Members:
The Audit Committee consisted of the members listed hereunder. Two meetings were 
held during the 2013/14 financial year. The Audit Charter requires that the committee 
meets at least 2 times per annum. 

Name of member Number of meetings attended

Ms  MM Maponya  
Chairperson, Non-Executive Board Member 

2 (Resigned 9 September 2013)

Mr TL Mazibuku  
Non Executive Board Member

2 (Resigned 9 September 2013)

Mr PR Masehela
Non Executive Board Member

 2 (Resigned in August 2013)

Audit committee responsibility
The Audit Committee reports to have adopted appropriate formal terms of reference in 
our charter in line with the requirements of section 55(1)(a) of the PFMA and Treasury 
Regulation 27.1. We further report that we have conducted our affairs in compliance with 
the Audit Committee Charter.

Internal Control and its effectiveness
The system of controls is designed to provide cost effective assurance that assets are 
safeguarded and that liabilities and working capital is efficiently managed. In line with 
the PFMA and the King II Report on Corporate Governance requirements, Internal Audit 
provides the Audit Committee and management with assurance that the internal controls 
are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by means of the risk management process, 
as well as the identification of corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the 
controls and processes. From the various reports of the Internal Auditors, the quarterly 
management reports, it was noted that no significant or material non-compliance with 
prescribed policies and procedures have been reported.
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Audit Committee ensures that Internal Audit Unit performs its responsibility by: 
 

• Reviewing competence and qualifications of the Internal Audit Function, including reviewing and concurring with appointment and dismissal of the Internal 
Audit service provider;

• Reviewing the plans and budgets of the Internal Audit Function. Ensure that the plan addresses the high risk areas and that adequate resources are available;
• Reviewing audit results and action plans of management;
• Reviewing the effectiveness of the Internal Audit Function;
• Ensuring that Internal Audit work is coordinated with External Audit to ensure little or no duplication of work and coverage;
• Receiving and reviewing quarterly progress reports submitted by the internal audit function;
• Reviewing the Annual Risk Assessment process and prioritisation of major risks identified.

Evaluation of annual financial statements
We have:

• Reviewed and discussed the annual financial statements to be included in the annual report, with the Auditor-General and the Internal Auditors;
• Reviewed the Auditor-General of South Africa’s management letter and management’s response thereto;
• Reviewed changes in accounting policies and practices;
• Reviewed the International Marketing Council compliance with legal and regulatory provisions;
• Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit.

Internal Audit
We are satisfied that the internal audit function is operating effectively and that it has addressed the risks pertinent to the Roads Agency Limpopo.

Auditor General of South Africa
We have met with the Auditor-General of South Africa to ensure that there are no unresolved issues.

..............................................................
MJ Boshielo 
Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee 
Roads Agency Limpopo
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PART D HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
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1. INTRODUCTION 

• Overview of HR matters  at the public entity
• Set HR priorities for the year under review and the impact of these priorities
• Workforce planning framework and key strategies to attract and recruit skilled and capable workforce
• Employee performance management framew ork 
• Employee wellness programmes 
• Policy development 
• Highlight achievements
• Challenges faced by the public entity
• Future HR plans /goals

2. HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS 

Personnel Cost by programme/ activity/ objective 

Programme/activity/
objective

Total Expenditure for the 
entity (R’000)

Personnel Expenditure 
(R’000)

Personnel exp. as a % of 
total  exp. (R’000) No. of employees Average personnel cost per 

employee (R’000)

Engineering 24 113 50.81 40 603

Corporate Services 9 170 19.32 18 509

Finance 7 693 16.21 12 641

Information Technology 3 870 8.16 6 645

CEO’s Office 2 614 5.50 4 523

Total 47 460 100 81 586
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Personnel cost by salary band

Level Personnel Expenditure (R’000) % of personnel exp. to total personnel cost 
(R’000) No. of employees Average personnel cost per 

employee (R’000)

Top Management  3 059 45.15 3 1 535

Senior Management 7 467 9.91 7 1 067

Professional qualified 21 430 15.73 25 824

Skilled 10 277 21.65 21 489

Semi-skilled 4 703 6.48 21 235

Unskilled 514 1.08 4 129

Total 47 460 100 81 586

Performance Rewards

Programme//activity/objective Performance rewards Personnel Expenditure (R’000) % of performance rewards  to total 
personnel cost (R’000)

Top Management 0 0 0

Senior Management 0 0 0

Professional qualified 0 0 0

Skilled 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 0 0 0

Unskilled 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0

Training Costs 

Programme//activity/
objective

Personnel Expenditure 
(R’000)

Training Expenditure
(R’000)

Training Expenditure as a % 
of Personnel Cost. No. of employees trained Avg training  cost per 

employee

Training and Courses 45 686 285 0,62 35 8 144

Programme/activity/objective 2013/2014 
No. of Employees

2013/2014 Approved 
Posts

2013/2014
No. of Employees 2013/2014 Vacancies % of vacancies

Employment and Vacancies 81 103 81 22 21.36
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Programme/activity/objective 2013/14  
No. of Employees 2013/2014 Approved Posts 2013/2014 Vacancies % of vacancies

Top Management 3 3 3 100.00

Senior Management 7 8 4 50.00

Professional qualified 25 33 8 24.24

Skilled 21 27 6 23.08

Semi-skilled 21 22 1 4.55

Unskilled 4 4 0 0

Total 81 97 22 21.57

There are vacancies in the Top Management category for the period under review, due to the fact that the currently serving incumbents are not permanently appointed. The two 
incumbents have been appointed in an acting capacity.

Roads Agency Limpopo has advertised all critical posts and filled some on temporary basis. There are employees who were seconded from the National Department of Transport 
as part of the intervention brought about by Section 100 (1) (b) of the constitution of South Africa. Due to delays in the appointment of RAL Board of Directors, no permanent 
appointment of Top Management and Senior Management was done. All positions which were advertised in the 2013/14 will be filled in the 2014/15 financial year.  

Salary Band Employment at beginning of period Appointments Terminations Employment at end of the period

Top Management 1 2 1 2

Senior Management 6 1 2 5

Professional qualified 23 2 1 24

Skilled 21 0 1 20

Semi-skilled 20 1 2 19

Unskilled 4 0 0 4

Total 75 6 7 74

Employment Changes 
The Acting CEO, Mr Manyungwana, in the period under review only served the Agency for (3) three months between April and June 2013.
Ms M Motsepe was appointed as Acting CFO from April to June 2013. She was then appointed as Acting CEO from July 2013, after the resignation of Mr Manyungwana. 
Mr M Mabuku was appointed as Acting CFO from July 2013.
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Reasons for staff leaving 

Reason Number % of total no. of staff leaving

Death 0 0

Resignation 5 66

Dismissal 0 0

Retirement 0 0

Ill health 0 0

Expiry of contract 2 22

Other 0 0

Total 7 100

In 2013/14 financial year, RAL counted 10 resignations which include Mr Manyungwana who was seconded from the National Department of Transport by the Minister. Mr 
Manyungwana is not counted as part of staff classified under category of “Reasons for staff leaving”.

Labour Relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action

Nature of disciplinary Action Number 

Verbal Warning 0

Written Warning 0

Final Written warning 0

Dismissal 0
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3. EMPLOYMENT EQUITY

Equity Target and Employment Equity Status 

Levels
MALE

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 3 2 0 0 0 0 2 0

Professional qualified 15 0 0 1 1 1 1 0

Skilled 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 8 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

Unskilled 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 35 3 0 1 1 1 3 0

Levels
FEMALE

AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management 1 4 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 2 4 0 0 0 0 0 0

Professional qualified 8 4 0 1 0 0 0 0

Skilled 14 0 0 0 1 1 0

Semi-skilled 11 1 2 0 0 0 0 0

Unskilled 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 39 13 2 1 0 1 1 0
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Levels
Disabled Staff

Male Female

Current Target Current Target

Top Management 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 0 0 0 0

Professional qualified 0 0 0 0

Skilled 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0

Unskilled 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0

The Agency has not met its employment equity targets in terms representation of women in top and senior management. The Agency intends to satisfy its employment equity 
needs in the 2014/15 financial year. 
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PART E FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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The Board of Directors is required by the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) (Act 1 
of 1999) as amended, to maintain adequate accounting records and is responsible for the 
preparation and integrity of the audited annual financial statements and related financial 
information included in this annual report. It is the responsibility of the Board of Directors 
to ensure that audited annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the 
Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd as at the end of the financial year and the results of its 
operations and cash flows for the period ended.

These financial statements have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies, 
supported by reasonable and prudent judgement and estimate, in conformity, in all material 
respects, with South African Standards of General Recognised Accounting Practice (SA 
Standards of GRAP).

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal 
control established by the entity and place considerable importance on maintaining a 
strong control environment. To enable the directors to meet these responsibilities, the 
board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or deficit in a 
cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of authority within a 
clearly defined framework, accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to 
ensure acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the entity and 
employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the entity’s 
business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. 
The focus of risk management in the entity is on identifying, assessing, managing and 
monitoring all known risk across the entity. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, 
the entity endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, control, 
systems and ethical behaviourare applied and managed  within predetermined procedures 
and constraints.

In the year under review from 13 September 2013 to 31 March 2014 the Executive Authority 
(in terms of section 100(1)(b) in terms of the Consitution of Republic of South Africa) 
appointed the Accounting Authority in terms of section 49(1) of the PFMA.

The Board of Directors is of the opinion that the financial statements fairly present the 
financial position of the Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd. The Auditor-General, who are the 
Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd’s independent auditors, are engaged to express an opinion 
on the annual financial statements and were given unrestricted access to all financial records 
and related data, including minutes of The Board of Directors, the Committees of the Board 

and the management of the Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd. The Board of Directors has 
no reason to believe that all representations made to the independent auditors during the 
audit are not valid and appropriate. The Board of Directors further accepts responsibility for 
the maintenance of accounting records which may be relied upon in the preparation of the 
financial statements as well as adequate systems of internal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Board of Directors to suggest that the Roads 
Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd will not remain a going concern for at least the following twelve 
months.

The Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd’s Annual Financial Statements which appear on 
pages 45 to 103 were approved by the Board of Directors and are signed on their behalf by:

.....................................................
ML. Mabuku
Acting Chief Financial Officer
31 July 2014

 

.....................................................
MI. Motsepe
Acting Chief Executive Officer
31 July 2014
 

.....................................................
MM. Mokonyama 
Administrator
31 July 2014
 

.....................................................
MJ. Boshielo
Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee  
31 July 2014

 

.....................................................
M. Ralebipi
Chairman of the board 
31 July 2014 Audit Committee Report
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The Audit Committee is pleased to present its report for the financial year ended 31 March 
2014. The Committee has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as outlined in the 
Audit Committee Charter. The Committee has regulated its affairs in compliance with this 
charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein namely:

• reviewing the internal control structure, including financial controls and accounting 
systems, as well as evaluating whether the system of internal control is adequate to 
manage critical risks;

• reviewing the internal audit function, including its written charter, objectives, goals and 
staffing plans, as well as evaluating whether the function is performed satisfactorily;

• evaluating  whether  management  demonstrates  and  stimulates  the  necessary  
respect  for  the  internal  control structures;

• overseeing and managing the total internal audit function to ensure that: the internal 
audit performance goals are achieved; risks are identified; specific issues requiring 
attention are highlighted;

Audit Committee members:

The Audit Committee consists of the members listed hereunder. Two meetings were held 
during the 2013/14 financial year. The Audit Charter requires that the committee meets at 
least 2 times per annum. The Auditor General attended all the Audit Committee meetings.

Name of member    Number of meetings attended
Ms  MM Maponya  Audit Committee Chairperson, 
Non Executive Board Member   2 (Resigned 9 September 2013)
Mr TL Mazibuku  
Non Executive Board Member   2 (Resigned 9 September 2013) 
Mr PR Masehela  
Non Executive Board Member   2 (Resigned in August 2013)

Audit and Risk Committee members were appointed in April 2014.

Audit committee responsibility

We report that we have adopted appropriate formal terms of reference in our charter in 
line with the requirements of section 55(1)(a) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 27.1. We 
further report that we have conducted our affairs in compliance with the Audit Committee 
Charter.

Internal Control and its effectiveness

The system of controls is designed to provide cost effective assurance that assets are 
safeguarded and that liabilities and working capital are efficiently managed. In line with 
the PFMA and the King II Report on Corporate Governance requirements, Internal Audit 
provides the Audit Committee and management with assurance that the internal controls 
are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by means of the risk management process, 
as well as the identification of corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the 
controls and processes. From the various reports of the Internal Auditors, the Quarterly 
Management Reports, it was noted that no significant or material non compliance with 
prescribed policies and procedures have been reported.

Internal audit function was outsource to SAB & T in the year under review.

The Audit and Risk Committee can report that the system of internal control for the period 
year to date was effective and efficient.

Audit Committee has ensured that Internal Audit has performed their responsibility by:
• Reviewing competence and qualifications of the Internal Audit function, including 

reviewing and concurring with appointment and dismissal of the Internal Audit service 
provider;

• Reviewing the plans and budgets of the Internal Audit function. Ensure that the plan 
addresses the high risk areas and that adequate resources are available;

• Reviewing audit results and action plans of management;
• Reviewing the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function;
• Ensuring that Internal Audit work is coordinated with External Audit to ensure little or 

no duplication of work and coverage;
• Receiving and reviewing quarterly progress reports submitted by the Internal Audit 

function;
• Reviewing the Annual Risk Assessment process and prioritisation of major risks 

identified.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
To the Provincial Legislature of Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd 
Report on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014



48

R
oa

ds
 A

ge
nc

y 
Li

m
po

po
 A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t 2

01
3/

14

 Evaluation of annual financial statements

We have:
• Reviewed and discussed the Annual Financial Statements to be included in the annual report, with the Auditor General and the Internal Auditors;
• Reviewed the Auditor General of South Africa’s management letter and management’s response thereto;
• Reviewed changes in accounting policies and practices;

Internal audit

We are satisfied that the internal audit function is operating effectively and that it has addressed the risks pertinent to the Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd and its audits.

Auditor General of South Africa

We have met with the Auditor General of South Africa to ensure that there are no unresolved issues.

.....................................................
MJ. Boshielo
Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee 
31 July 2014
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (CONTINUED)
To the Provincial Legislature of Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd 
Report on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014



49

R
oads A

gency Lim
popo A

nnual R
eport 2013/14

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO THE LIMPOPO PROVINCIAL 
LEGISLATURE ON THE ROADS AGENCY LIMPOPO (SOC) LIMITED

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTRODUCTION

I have audited the financial statements of the Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd set out 
on pages 63 to 103, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 
2014, the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, and 
cash flow statement and the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for 
the year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 

ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

The board of directors, which constitutes the accounting authority is responsible for the 
preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with South 
African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA standards of GRAP) 
and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act 
No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA) and the Companies Act of South Africa, 2008 (Act No. 71 of 2008) 
(Companies Act), and for such internal control as the accounting authority determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR-GENERAL’S RESPONSIBILITY

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. 
I conducted my audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 
25 of 2004) (PAA), the general notice issued in terms thereof and International Standards 
on Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements, and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation [and fair presentation] of 
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my adverse audit opinion.
Basis for adverse opinion

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (PPE)

During 2013, the entity had not submitted documentation supporting its transfers 
between roads and bridges and PPE under construction as disclosed in note 3 to the 
financial statements to the amount of R492 256 000. The accounting records of the entity 
did not permit the application of alternative audit procedures. As a result, I was unable to 
confirm the classification of items of PPE to the amount of R34 629 781 000 as disclosed 
in note 3 to the financial statements. My audit opinion on the financial statements for the 
period ended 31 March 2013 was modified accordingly. My opinion on the current period’s 
financial statements is also modified because of the possible effect of this matter on the 
comparability of the current period’s figures.

During 2013, I identified capital expenditure transactions to the amount of R27 184 499 
relating to the 2011-2012 financial year that were incorrectly recorded in the current financial 
year. Consequently, additions to items of PPE and the opening balance of retained earnings 
are overstated by R27 184 499. 

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL
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The entity did not review the residual values and useful lives of items of PPE at each 
reporting date in accordance with SA Standards of GRAP 17 Property, plant and equipment. 
The entity’s records did not permit the application of alternative audit procedures. 
Consequently, the impact on the net carrying value and depreciation of property, plant and 
equipment and the corresponding effect on accumulated surplus in terms of SA Standards 
of GRAP 3 Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors as disclosed in 
the statement of financial position could not be determined.

I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for roads and bridges constructed 
by other entities which were recognised as additions by the entity, as adequate evidence of 
the deemed cost calculations could not be provided. I could not confirm the correctness of 
the deemed cost by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether 
any adjustment to additions stated at R373 096 000 (2013: R674 305 000) in the financial 
statements was necessary.

The entity did not appropriately assess at the reporting date whether there were any 
indications that infrastructure assets may be impaired in accordance with SA Standards of 
GRAP 21 Impairment of Non-cash generating assets. I could not confirm the correctness of 
the carrying amounts of infrastructure assets by alternative means. Consequently, I was 
unable to determine whether any adjustment to infrastructure stated at R30 666 349 000 
in the financial statements was necessary.

The entity did not adequately account for all roads as the entity did not have systems and 
procedures in place to assess the ownership thereof. I was unable to confirm the roads 
infrastructure by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any 
adjustment to roads infrastructure stated at R30 666 349 000 (2013: R33 012 682 000) in 
the financial statements was necessary. 
 
EXPENDITURE

During 2013, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the journals 
recorded amounting to R46 924 601. I was unable to confirm the journals by alternative 

means. Consequently I was unable to determine whether any adjustment to expenditure 
stated at R46 045 000 in the financial statements, was necessary. My audit opinion on 
the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2013 was modified accordingly. 
My opinion on the current period’s financial statements is also modified because of the 
possible effect of this matter on the comparability of the current period’s figures.

During 2013, I have identified expenditure transactions to the amount of R797 006 relating 
to the 2011-2012 financial year that were incorrectly recorded in the current financial period. 
Consequently, expenditure and the opening balance of retained earnings are overstated by 
R797 006.

IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

The entity procured goods and services amounting to R290 472 982 (2013: R889 000) in 
contravention of the procurement laws and regulations. Due to a lack of an appropriate 
procurement system at the entity I was unable to confirm whether the disclosure 
made as regards to the irregular expenditure in the financial statements was complete. 
Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any further adjustments to irregular 
expenditure stated in note 31 to the financial statements at R1 482 922 (2013: R1 482 922) 
were necessary.

FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

No system was in place for the identification and recognition of fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure. I could not perform satisfactory alternative audit procedures to obtain 
reasonable assurance that all fruitless and wasteful expenditure was properly recorded. 
Consequently, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy 
myself as to the completeness of fruitless and wasteful expenditure disclosed at 
R4 774 000 (2013: R3 379 000) in note 30 to the financial statements. 
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ADVERSE OPINION

In my opinion, because of the significance of the matters described in the basis for adverse 
opinion paragraphs, the financial statements do not present fairly the financial position of 
the Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd as at 31 March 2014 and its financial performance 
and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the SA standards of GRAP and 
the requirements of the PFMA and the Companies Act.
 
EMPHASIS OF MATTERS

I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

RESTATEMENT OF CORRESPONDING FIGURES 

As disclosed in note 27 and 28 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 
31 March 2013 have been restated as a result of an error discovered during 2014 in the 
financial statements of the entity at, and for the year ended, 31 March 2013. 

ADDITIONAL MATTERS

I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these 
matters.

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES 

The supplementary information set out on pages 1 to 43 does not form part of the financial 
statements and is presented as additional information. I have not audited these schedules 
and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion thereon.

OTHER REPORTS REQUIRED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 

As part of our audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014, I have 
read the Directors’ Report and the Audit Committee’s Report for the purpose of identifying 
whether there are material inconsistencies between these reports and the audited financial 
statements. These reports are the responsibility of the respective preparers. Based on 
reading these reports I have not identified material inconsistencies between the reports 
and the audited financial statements in respect of which I have expressed a disclaimer of 
opinion. I have not audited the reports and accordingly do not express an opinion on them.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I report the 
following findings on the reported performance information against predetermined 
objectives for selected objectives presented in the annual performance report, non-
compliance with legislation as well as internal control. The objective of my tests was 
to identify reportable findings as described under each subheading but not to gather 
evidence to express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion 
or conclusion on these matters.

PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES 

I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the 
reported performance information for the following selected objectives presented in the 
annual performance report of the entity for the year ended 31 March 2014:

Objective 2: Transport Infrastructure on pages 21 to 25 

I evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness 
and reliability. 
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I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether 
it was presented in accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and 
whether the reported performance was consistent with the planned objectives. I further 
performed tests to determine whether indicators and targets were well defined, verifiable, 
specific, measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by the National Treasury’s 
Framework for managing programme performance information (FMPPI).

I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it 
was valid, accurate and complete.

I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported 
performance information for the selected objectives.

ADDITIONAL MATTERS

Although I raised no material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported 
performance information for the selected objectives, I draw attention to the following 
matters:

ACHIEVEMENT OF PLANNED TARGETS

Refer to the annual performance report on pages 18 to 25 for information on the 
achievement of the planned targets for the year. 

ADJUSTMENT OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENTS

I identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for 
auditing on the reported performance information for objective 2: Transport infrastructure. 
As management subsequently corrected the misstatements, I did not raise any material 
findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information. 

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity had complied with applicable 
legislation regarding financial matters, financial management and other related matters. 
My findings on material non-compliance with specific matters in key legislation, as set 
out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA, are as follows did not identify any 
instances of material non-compliance with specific matters in key applicable laws and 
regulations as set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA:
 
STRATEGIC PLANNING AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

Effective, efficient and transparent systems of risk management and internal controls 
with respect to performance information and management was not in place as required by 
section 51(1)(a)(i) of the PFMA.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PERFORMANCE AND ANNUAL REPORTS

The accounting authority did not submit the financial statements for auditing within two 
months after the end of financial year, as required by section 55(1)(c)(i) of the PFMA.

The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with 
the prescribed financial reporting framework and supported by full and proper records as 
required by section 55(1)(a) and (b) of the PFMA and section 29(1)(a) of the Companies Act.

Material misstatements of disclosure items identified by the auditors in the submitted 
financial statements were subsequently corrected and the supporting records were 
provided subsequently, but the uncorrected material misstatements and supporting 
records that could not be provided resulted in the financial statements receiving a adverse 
audit opinion.

The annual return of the company for the year 2013 was filed within the 30 day prescribed 
period, as required by section 33 of the Companies Act and Companies Regulation 30(1).
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AUDIT COMMITTEES

An audit committee was not in place as required by section 51(1)(a)(ii) of the PFMA and 
section 94(2) of the Companies Act

The audit committee did not review risk areas of the entity’s operations covered in the 
scope of internal and external audits, effectiveness of the internal control systems and 
accounting and auditing concerns identified as a result of internal and external audits as 
required by Treasury Regulation 27.1.8(a), (b), (c), (e) and (g).

The audit committee did not meet at least twice a year, as required by section 77(b) of the 
PMFA.

The audit committee did not review the institution’s compliance with legal and regulatory 
provisions, as required by Treasury Regulation 27.1.8(f).

Audit committee vacancies were not filled by the accounting authority within 40 days, as 
required by section 94(6) of the Companies Act.

INTERNAL AUDIT

Internal audit was not under the control and direction of the audit committee, as required 
by section 51(1)(a)(ii) of the PFMA.

The purpose, authority and responsibility of the internal audit function was not formally 
defined in an audit charter, as required by Treasury Regulation 27.2.5.

Internal audit did not have a three year rolling strategic internal audit plan in place, as 
required by Treasury Regulation 27.2.7(a).

Internal audit did not have an annual internal audit plan for the first year of the rolling three 
year strategic internal audit plan in place, as required by Treasury Regulation 27.2.7(b).

Internal audit did not submit reports, detailing performance against the annual internal 
audit plan, to the audit committee, as required by Treasury Regulation 27.2.7(d).

Internal audit did not report directly to the accounting authority, as required by Treasury 
Regulation 27.2.8.

Internal audit did not evaluate the effectiveness and efficiency of controls and did not 
make recommendations for its enhancement and improvement, as required by Treasury 
Regulation 27.2.10.

Internal audit did not evaluate the reliability and integrity of financial and operational 
information, as required by Treasury Regulation 27.2.10(b).

Internal audit did not evaluate compliance with laws and regulations, as required by 
Treasury Regulation 27.2.10(e).

PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACT MANAGEMENT

Goods and services with a transaction value below R500 000 were procured without 
obtaining the required price quotations, as required by Treasury Regulation 16A6.1.

Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that goods and services of a 
transaction value above R500 000 were procured by means of inviting competitive bids 
and that deviations approved by the accounting officer were only if it was impractical to 
invite competitive bids, as required by Treasury Regulations 16A6.1 and 16A6.4.

Invitations for competitive bidding were not always advertised in at least the government 
tender bulletin, as required by Treasury Regulations 16A6.3(c).

Invitations for competitive bidding were not always advertised for a required minimum 
period of 21 days, as required by Treasury Regulations 16A6.3(c).
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Bid adjudication was not always done by committees which was composed in accordance 
with the policies of the entity, as required by Treasury Regulations 16A6.2(a), (b) and (c).

Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that awards were only made to 
suppliers who submitted a declaration of past supply chain practices such as fraud, abuse 
of SCM system and non-performance, which is prescribed in order to comply with Treasury 
regulation 16A9.2

Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that all extension or 
modification to contracts were approved by a properly delegated official as required by 
Treasury Regulation 8.1 and 8.2 and PFMA section 44.

Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that contracts and quotations 
were awarded to suppliers whose tax matters have been declared by the South African 
Revenue Services to be in order as required by Treasury Regulations 16A9.1(d) and the 
Preferential Procurement Regulations.

Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that contracts were awarded 
to bidders based on points given for criteria that were stipulated in the original invitation 
for bidding and quotations, as required by SCM regulation Treasury Regulations 16A6.3(a) 
and Preferential Procurement Regulations.

Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that the preference point 
system was applied in all procurement of goods and services above R30 000 as required 
by section 2(a) of the Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act and Treasury 
Regulations 16A6.3(b).

Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that contracts were awarded 
only to bidders who submitted a declaration on whether they are employed by the state 
or connected to any person employed by the state, which is prescribed in order to comply 
with Treasury Regulation 16A8.3.

Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that construction contracts 
were awarded to contractors that were registered with the Construction Industry 
Development Board (CIDB) and qualified for the contract in accordance with section 18(1) of 
the CIDB Act and CIDB regulations 17 and 25(7A).

Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that all contracts were awarded 
in accordance with the legislative requirements as evidence was not readily available for 
audit purposes.

EXPENDITURE MANAGEMENT

The accounting authority did not take effective steps to prevent irregular expenditure and 
fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as required by section 51(1)(b)(ii) of the PFMA.

ASSET MANAGEMENT

Proper control systems to safeguard and maintain assets were not implemented, as 
required by sections 50(1)(a) and 51(1)(c) of the PFMA

The accounting records for non-current assets was not complete and accurate, as required 
by section 28(1) of the Companies Act and prescribed in the Companies Regulation 25(3)
(a)(i).

CONSEQUENCE MANAGEMENT

Effective and appropriate disciplinary steps were not taken against officials who incurred 
and permitted irregular expenditure and fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as required by 
section 51(1)(e)(iii) of the PFMA.

OTHER MATTERS

The entity generated taxable supplies in excess of R1 million, but has not registered for 
VAT, as required by the Value Added Tax act.
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INTERNAL CONTROL 

I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual 
performance report and compliance with legislation. The matters reported below are 
limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the basis for adverse 
opinion and the findings on non-compliance with legislation included in this report.
 
LEADERSHIP

Management does not always provide the required supervision and review over the 
operations of the entity to ensure that it complies with all laws and regulations and 
appoint the necessary skilled staff members.

The corrective actions implemented as per the action plan were not adequate and 
consequently prior year matters were not appropriately addressed.

FINANCIAL AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

A lack of adequate technical knowledge within management, a high level of reliance on 
consultants with regard to the preparation of financial statements and a lack of adherence 
to laws and regulations resulted in the adverse opinion on the financial statements. 

GOVERNANCE

The internal audit unit was not adequately functioning and there was not an audit 
committee in place throughout the financial period. This prevented the audit committee 
from promoting accountability and service delivery through evaluating and monitoring 
responses to risks and providing oversight over the effectiveness of the internal control 
environment, including financial and performance reporting and compliance with laws and 
regulations

..........................................
Polokwane
19 August 2014
 

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL
To the Provincial Legislature of Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd 
Report on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014



56

R
oa

ds
 A

ge
nc

y 
Li

m
po

po
 A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t 2

01
3/

14

1. REVIEW OF ACTIVITIES

Main business and operations

The Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd was established to own and manage the provincial 
road network of the Limpopo Province in terms of the Northern Province Roads Agency 
and Province Roads Agency Limited and Provincial Roads Act , 1998 (Act no 7 of 1998 as 
amended) and the Companies Act 71 of 2008. The entity is listed in schedule 3C of the 
Public Finance  Management Act of 1999 as amended.

The MEC of Roads and Transport is the Executive Authority and during the period of the 
administration the National Minister of Transport is the Executive  Authority in terms of 
Section 100 (1)(b) of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa and the Board of 
Directors is an Accounting Authority of the Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd. The Roads 
Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd is funded by the Department of Roads and Transport.

In the year under review, the Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd underwent a review 
initiated by the then Executive Authority wherein choices around the mandate, the role 
and structure will be considered. The review is undertaken by an external consultancy, 
PWC overseen by a reference group comprising members of the Roads Agency Limpopo 
(SOC) Ltd’s Board and Department of Roads and Transport executive management and 
the Administrator in terms of section 100(1)(b) of the constitution of the Republic of 
South Africa, Act  no 108 of 1996, as amended.

The Board was dissolved in September 2013 and an Accounting Authority was 
subsequently appointed in terms of section 49(1) of the Public Finance Management Act 
of 1999 as amended.

In the year under review the Executive Authority withdrew the Provincial Gazette No 1041, 
Volume 11 of 28 September 2004 on roads ownership in the province.

Preventative Maintenance was transferred from the Department of Roads and Transport 
with effect from the 1 April 2014.

With the reconfiguration of departments in the 2014 financial year the Roads Agency 
Limpopo (SOC) Ltd shareholding was transferred from the Department of Roads and 
Transport to the Department of Public Works and Roads Infrastructure.

2. GOING CONCERN

The audited annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of the 
accounting policies applicable to a going concern. The Board of Directors is of the opinion 
that the Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd has adequate resources to continue with 
operations in the next financial year and that the realisation of assets and settlement 
of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course 
of business.

3. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Board of Directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the 
end of the financial year to the date of this report that requires further disclosure in the 
annual financial statements.

4. DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No material contracts in which the directors have an interest, were entered into in the 
current year other than the transactions detailed in note 26 of the financial statements.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ROAD AGENCY LIMPOPO (SOC) LTD HAS PLEASURE IN PRESENTING THE ANNUAL REPORT ON THE ACTIVITIES 
OF THE ENTITY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014.
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5. GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE 

General

The Board of Directors retains full control of the Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd’s 
plans and strategy and acknowledges its responsibilities as to strategy, compliance 
with internal policies, external laws and regulations, effective risk management and 
performance measurement, transparency and effective communication both internally 
and externally. The Board of Directors is a unitary structure comprising of non-executive 
board members all of whom are independent. The Board of Directors is committed to the 
prevailing King Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa and complies with the 
Protocol on Corporate Governance for State enterprises, the Public Finance Management 
Act and the Treasury Regulations. In order to assist the Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd 
to comply with these obligations a Shareholder Compact was entered into between the 
Executive Authorities both in terms of the Northern Province Road Agency and Province 
Roads Agency Limited and Provincial Roads Act , 1998 (Act no 7 of 1998 as amended) 
and Section 100 (1)(b) of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa as well as the 
Accounting Authority in terms of section 49 (1) of PFMA as amended.

As part of the regulatory framework of the Shareholder Compact, a number of 
complementary and supporting documents were revised or introduced to enhance 
governance namely the Delegation of Authority, Organisational Performance Plan, the 
Board Charter, the Revenue Policy, the Inventory Management Policy, the Fraud and 
Corruption Prevention Policy, the Asset Management Policy, the Supply Management 
Policy, Materiality and significance Framework, the risk and Management Strategy,  Risk 
Management Plan,  Internal Audit Charter, Annual Performance Plan, Auditor General’s 
Plan and Quarterly Management Reports. Through this process stakeholders may derive 
assurance that the Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd is being adequately managed. The 
details of the entity employees are set out on pages 36 to 42 of the annual report.

Chairperson and Chief Executive

The Accounting Authority is a non-executive and independent director (as defined 
by the King III). The Board held meetings and executed their fiduciary responsibilities 
in line with the PFMA. The Board of Directors under the ultimate responsibility of the 
Chairman created sufficient space to maintain a continuous overview of organisational 
effectiveness, organisational efficiency, Board performance and Board conformance. The 
Chairman was a non-executive and independent Board of Directors and the roles of the 
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are separate. The roles of Chairperson and Chief 
Executive are separate, with responsibilities divided between them, so that no individual 
has unfettered powers of discretion. The Chief Executive Officer attends meetings of 
the Board and Audit Committee of the Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd and reports on 
activities of the Entity. Being involved with the day to day business activities, the Chief 
Executive Officer is responsible for ensuring that decisions, strategies, and decision of 
the Board are implemented

In the year under review the board had a Chairperson until the disbandment of the Board 
in September 2013, thereafter the Accounting Authority was appointed for the remaining 
period. In the same period there was an Acting Chief Executive Officer to over see the 
daily operations.

Audit and Risk Committee

For the first six months of the 2013/14 financial year the chairperson of the audit 
committee was Ms Mita Maponya (non-executive Board of entity) and for the remaining 
six months there was no board sub committee. The committee met 2 times during the 
financial year to review matters necessary to fulfil its role. The Audit and Risk Committee 
was appointed by the newly appointed Board in April 2014.
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6. SHARE CAPITAL / CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

There were no changes in the authorised or issued share capital of the entity during the 
year under review.

7. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND PROCEDURES

To meet its responsibility with respect to providing reliable financial information, the 
Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd maintains financial and operational systems of internal 
control. These controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are concluded in accordance with management’s authority, that the assets are adequately 
safeguarded against material loss of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposal and those 
transactions are properly authorised and recorded. The Audit and Risk Committee and 
the Board held all their scheduled meetings for the year. All documents that were tabled 
for approval were approved and implemented by the management team. No material 
deficiencies in the internal controls over financial reporting were identified.

8. RISK MANAGEMENT

A risk management workshop was held in November 2013 wherein new strategic risks 
were identified and their inherent risk and residual risk ratings done. These risks were 
the responsibility of the management to manage while the Accounting Authority was 
accountable for ensuring that management has an effective risk management system in 
place to mitigate the risk exposure.

9. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES, AND  LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

All Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd’s commitments are reflected in the statement of 
financial position. In the year under review.

10. FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL AND IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

Fruitless expenditure related mainly to late payments and interest.  Details of fruitless 
and irregular expenditure are set out in notes 31 and 32.

11. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Allocation for the 2013/14 financial year was R337 759 000, amount that was increased 
by 54.65% to R617 984 000 during the November 2013 Adjustment Estimates. 
In April 2014 during the budget cuts, the allocation was reduced by R98 900 000 to 
R519 084 000. The reduction was made on Capital Projects allocation. In the 2014/15 
financial year it was confirmed by the Department of Roads and Transport that R477 000 
000 would be allocated to the Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd during the adjustment 
estimate.

Total expenditure for the year under review is R414 726 000 which is 80.38% of the total 
allocation of R519 084 000. Noting that R312 595 008 was rolled over from the previous 
financial year.

Capital expenditure as at 31 March 2014 is R345 670 482 from the budgeted allocation 
of R444 084 000 which is 77.84%. Administration costs were allocated a budget of 
R75 000 000 and the expenditure thereof is R69 056 000 which is 92.07% of the 
allocated budget. Personnel which forms part of the Administration budget was allocated 
R51 550 000 and expenditure thereof was R47 460 000 which is 92.06% of the allocated 
Personnel budget. There was no reallocation of budgets in the year under review.

12. DIRECTORS

The directors of the entity during the year and to the date of this report are as follows: 

Name                                Status                                    Changes
M Ralebipi                      Chairperson                         Appointed 2 April 2014
MH Kekana                     Non excecutive                  Appointed 2 April 2014

DIRECTOR’S  REPORT
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R Shingange                  Non excecutive                   Appointed 2 April 2014
WNG Moleko                  Non excecutive                  Appointed 2 April 2014
JR Bilankulu                    Non excecutive                  Appointed 2 April 2014
MK Machaba                  Non excecutive                  Appointed 2 April 2014
MJ Boshielo                     Non excecutive                  Appointed 2 April 2014
MP Tshisevhe                 Chairperson                        Resigned 9 September 2013
JR Bilankulu                    Non excecutive                  Resigned 9 September 2013
MM Maponya                 Non excecutive                  Resigned 9 September 2013
TM Makofane                 Non excecutive                  Resigned 9 September 2013
PR Masehela                  Non excecutive                  Resigned 9 September 2013
TL Mazibuko                   Non excecutive                  Resigned 9 September 2013
MM Mokonyama            Accounting Authority      Appointed 13 September 2013

13. BOARD SECRETARY

The entity had no board secretary during the 2013/14 financial year.

14. HUMAN RESOURCES

The Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd maintains a positive ethical work climate that is conducive to attracting, retaining and motivating a diverse group of quality employees at all 
levels of operations to encourage team spirit and personal commitment. A moratorium on recruitment of new staff that was imposed in 2010/11 remained in place until June 2013. 
This meant that vacancies caused by resignations were not filled and the time the moratorium was lifted the Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd was operating at 30% below capacity. 
Key positions vacant for the year under review were that of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer. There was an Acting CEO and Acting CFO in the year under review.

Human Resource policies and practices foster a fair and open people management approach that engenders a high performance environment to benefit all stakeholders.
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Human Resource Board sub-committee was appointed in April 2014.

The Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd is committed to Employment Equity and provides opportunities for all its employees with special attention to Previously Disadvantaged 
Individuals (PDI’s).
Human resources statistics as at 31 March 2014

The following is the staff establishment of the Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd at year end:

Total Employees African % Coloured % Indian % White % Total

Top management 4 5% 0 0% 0 0% 1 1% 5

Senior management 3 4% 0 0% 1 1% 1 1% 5

Middle management 41 53% 0 0% 0 0% 1 1% 42

General staff 23 30% 2 3% 0 0% 0 0% 25

Grand Total for male and female 71 92% 2 3% 1 1% 3 3% 77

Total Female Employees African % Coloured % Indian % White % Total
Top management 2 5% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 2

Senior management 1 2% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 1

Middle management 22 54% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 22

General staff 14 34% 2 5% 0 0% 0 0% 16

Sub-total 39 95% 2 5% 0 0% 0 0% 41

Total Male Employees African % Coloured % Indian % White % Total

Top management 2 6% 0 0% 0 0% 1 3% 3

Senior management 2 6% 0 0% 1 3% 1 3% 4

Middle management 19 53% 0 0% 0 0% 1 3% 20

General staff 9 20% 2 0% 0 0% 0 0% 9

Sub-total 32 89% 2 0% 1 3% 3 8% 36
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15. AUDITORS

The Auditor General will continue in office for the next financial period.

.........................................................                                                                                        .........................................................
ML. Mabuku       MI. Motsepe
Acting Chief Financial Officer       Acting Chief Executive Officer 
31 July 2014       31 July 2014

.........................................................                                                                                        .........................................................
MM. Mokonyama M. Ralebipi
Administrator Chairman of the board
31 July 2014 31 July 2014
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Declaration by the company secretary in respect of Section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act

In terms of Section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act 71 of 2008, as amended, I certify that the company has lodged with the Commissioner all such returns as are required of a public 
company in terms of the Companies Act and that all such returns are true, correct and up to date.

Company Secretary

COMPANY BOARD SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATION
To the Provincial Legislature of Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd 
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Figures in Rand thousand            2014                   2013

Assets 

Current Assets
Consumables 6 261 371

Study loans 7 108 123

Receivables from exchange transactions 8 1,592 1,867

Cash and cash equivalents 9 406,001 320,728

407,962 323,089

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 32,618,126 34,629,781

Intangible assets 4 13 94

Other financial assets 5 2,260 2,270

32,620,399 34,632,145
Total Assets 33,028,361 34,955,234

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Other financial liabilities 11 - 32,490

Payables from exchange transactions 13 34,891 38,818

Provisions 12 1,934 4,125

36,825 75,433
Total Liabilities 36,825 75,433
Net Assets 32,991,536 34,879,801
Accumulated surplus 32,991,536 34,879,801

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2014
To the Provincial Legislature of Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd 
Report on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014
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Figures in Rand thousand 2014 2013

Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Other income 18 15,841 7,653

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfer revenue
Government grants and subsidies 519,084 1,235,812

Roads and bridges constructed by other entities 35,530 42,841

Total revenue 15 570,455 1,286,306
Expenditure 

Personnel 20 (47,460) (44,653)

Depreciation and amortisation (2,384,665) (2,571,723)

Finance costs 21 (1,197) (15,492)

Debt written off (187) (52)

Repairs and maintenance (343) (47)

Loss on disposal of assets (3) (11,417)

General expenses 19 (24,865) (46,045)

Total expenditure (2,458,720) (2,689,429)
Operating deficit (1,888,265) (1,403,123)
Deficit for the year (1,888,265) (1,403,123)

Attributable to:
Owners of the controlling entity (1,888,265) (1,403,123)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
To the Provincial Legislature of Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd 
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Figures in Rand thousand
Accumulated 

surplus
Total net 

assets
Opening balance as previously reported 32,970,835 32,970,835

Adjusments of prior year errors 3,312,088 3,312,088

Balance at 01 April 2012 as restated*

Changes in net assets deficit for the year

36,282,923

(1,403,122)

36,282,923

(1,403,122)

Total changes (1,403,122) (1,403,122)

Balance at 01 April 2013 34,879,801 34,879,801

Changes in net assets deficit for the year (1,888,265) (1,888,265)

Total changes (1,888,265) (1,888,265)

Balance at 31 March 2014 32,991,536 32,991,536

Notes(s) 32

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
To the Provincial Legislature of Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd 
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Figures in Rand thousand 2014 2013

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Grants 16            519,084 1,235,812

Interest income 12,073 4,301

Other receipts 3,768 1,945

534,925 1,242,058

Payments
Employee costs (47,460) (41,862)

Suppliers (28,019) (274,158)

Finance costs (1,197) (15,492)

(76,676) (331,512)

Net cash flows from operating activities 23 458,249 910,546

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3 (340,674) (628,356)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3 163 55

Proceeds from sale of financial assets 10 (160)

Net cash flows from investing activities (340,501) (628,461)

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of other financial liabilities (32,490) 31,560

Movement in loans to employees 15 150

Net cash flows from financing activities (32,475) 31,710

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 85,273 313,795
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 320,728 6,933

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9 406,001 320,728

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
To the Provincial Legislature of Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd 
Report on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014
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Budget on Cash Basis

Figures in Rand thousand
Approved 

budget
Adjustments Final Budget

Actual 
amounts on 
comparable 

basis

Difference 
between final 

budget and 
actual

Statement of Financial Performance

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions
Other income 4,268 - 4,268 15,841 11,573

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Taxation revenue

Government grants & subsidies 617,984 (98,900) 519,084 519,084 -

Expenditure

Personnel (51,550) - (51,550) (47,460) 4,090

Finance costs - - - (1,197) (1,197)
Debt written off - - - (187) (187)
Repairs and maintenance (200) - (200) (343) (143)
General expenses (23,250) - (23,250) (19,869) 3,381
Project costs (444,084) - (444,084) (345,670) 98,414
Total expenditure (519,084) - (519,084) (414,726) 104,358
Operating surplus 103,168 (98,900) 4,268 120,199 115,931
Loss on disposal of assets and liabilities - - - (3) (3)
Surplus before taxation 103,168 (98,900) 4,268 120,196 115,928
Actual Amount on Comparable Basis as 
Presented in the Budget and Actual Comparative Statement 103,168 (98,900) 4,268 120,196 115,928

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
To the Provincial Legislature of Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd 
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Reconciliation

Basis difference
Depreciaiton and amortisation (2,384,665)

Revenue from non-exchange transactions 35,530

Capital projects 340,674

Actual Amount in the Statement of Financial Performance (1,888,265)

Explanations for significant variances

 1. The actual revenue exceeds the budgeted amount due to interest amounting to R12 million earned on the bank account. 
 2. Personnel cost was below budget due to certain vacancies that where not filled during the year.

 3. The under expenditure on capital projects is mainly due to over commitments in prior years. Several projects were suspended previously due to a lack of funds. 
     The Agency’s capital budget was reduced by R98.9 million during the April budget adjustments. The Department of Roads and Transport confirmed that R477 million would 
            be transferred to the Agency during the Adjustment Estimate.

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS (CONTINUED)
To the Provincial Legislature of Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd 
Report on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014
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1. PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of 
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards 
Board in accordance with Section 91(1) of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 
1999) and the Companies Act no 71 of 2008.

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and 
are in accordance with historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless 
specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied 
in the preparation of these financial statements, are disclosed below.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.1 SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 
UNCERTAINTY

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the amounts represented in the financial statements 
and related disclosures. Use of available information and the application of judgement 
is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ 
from these estimates which may be material to the financial statements. Significant 
judgements include:

Allowance for doubtful debts

On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is 
objective evidence that it is impaired. The impairment is measured as the difference 
between the debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash 
flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.

Useful lives and residual value

The estimated useful lives and residual values of items of property , plant and 
equipment are reviewed annually taking cognisance of the forecasted commercial and 
economic realities and through benchmarking of accounting treatments in the specific 
industries where these assets are used. Infrastucture assets such as roads and bridges 
are inspected on an annual basis to obtain an updated Visual Conditions Index ( “VCI”). 
The VCI is used to re-assess the remaining useful lives of infrastucture assets and any 
changes are accounted for as a change in accounting estimate. Refer note 23.

1.2 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure 
assets) that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, rental to 
others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than 
one period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
• it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential as(SOC)iated with 

the item will flow to the entity; and
• the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  
• Property, Plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other 
costs attributable to bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and 
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value 
as at date of acquisition.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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1.2 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-
monetary asset or monetary assets, or a combination of monetary and non-monetary 
assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired 
item’s fair value was not determinable, it’s deemed cost is the carrying amount of the 
asset(s) given up.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different 
useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, 
plant and equipment.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and 
equipment and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a 
replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and 
equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the 
site on which it is located is also included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, 
where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the obligation arises 
as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of 
inventories.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment 
ceases when the item is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management.

Major spare parts and stand by equipment which are expected to be used for more than 
one period are included in property, plant and equipment. In addition, spare parts and 
stand by equipment which can only be used in connection with an item of property, plant 
and equipment are accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, 
plant and equipment and which meet the recognition criteria above are included as a 
replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining 
inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any 
impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at revalued amount, being the fair value at 
the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent 
accumulated impairment losses.

The depreciation methods, current estimated useful lives and residual values, if not 
insignificant, are reassessed annually. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, 
the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

Land is not depreciated and is deemed to have an indefinite life.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as 
follows:

Item                                                                     Average useful life
 Buildings                                                           50 Years
 Road beds                                                         40 Years
 Equipment                                                            3-8 Years
 Pavement layers                                              20 Years
 Bridges                                                                   50 Years

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is 
included in the carrying amount of another asset.

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of 
or when there are no further economic benefits or service potential expected from the 
use of the asset.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment 
is included in surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising 
from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as 
the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the 
item.

1.3 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

An asset is identifiable if it either:
• is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, 

transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, either individually or together with 
a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of whether the entity 
intends to do so; or

• arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of 
whether those rights are transferable or separable from the entity or from other 
rights and obligations.

A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and 
obligations on the parties to it as if it were in the form of a contract.

An intangible asset is recognised when:
• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are 

attributable to the asset will flow to the entity; and
• the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

The entity assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service 
potential using reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent management’s 
best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist over the useful life of the 
asset.

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost 
at the date of acquisition is measured at its fair value as at that date.

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as 
an expense when it is incurred.

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all 
relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is 
expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential. Amortisation is not provided 
for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever 
there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets 
amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over their useful life.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed 
at each reporting date.

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was 
classified as indefinite is an indicator that the asset may be impaired. As a result the 
asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over its 
useful life.

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items 
similar in substance are not recognised as intangible assets.

Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an intangible asset.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to 
their residual values as follows:

Item                                                             Useful life
Website development cost                   3 years

Intangible assets are derecognised:
• on disposal; or
• when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or 

disposal.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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1.4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Classification
The entity classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following categories:
• Loans and receivables
• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained 
/ incurred and takes place at initial recognition. Classification is re-assessed on an annual 
basis, except for derivatives and financial assets designated as at fair value through 
surplus or deficit, which shall not be classified out of the fair value through surplus or 
deficit category.

   Initial recognition and measurement

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the entity becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instruments.

The entity classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition 
as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the 
substance of the contractual arrangement.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, except for equity investments 
for which a fair value is not determinable, which are measured at cost and are classified 
as available-for-sale financial assets.

For financial instruments which are not at fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction 
costs are included in the initial measurement of the instrument.

Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective 
interest method, less accumulated impairment losses.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, 
using the effective interest method.

Fair value determination

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a 
financial asset is not active (and for unlisted securities), the entity establishes fair value 
by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, 
reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow 
analysis, and option pricing models making maximum use of market inputs and relying 
as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

Impairment of financial assets

At each end of the reporting period the entity assesses all financial assets, other than 
those at fair value through surplus or deficit, to determine whether there is objective 
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets has been impaired.

For amounts due to the entity, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability 
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy and default of payments are all considered 
indicators of impairment.

In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged 
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered an indicator of 
impairment. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the 
cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and current 
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in surplus 
or deficit - is removed from equity as a reclassification adjustment and recognised in 
surplus or deficit.

Impairment losses are recognised in surplus or deficit.
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Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the financial asset’s recoverable 
amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was 
recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the financial asset at 
the date that the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying amount 
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in surplus or deficit except for equity 
investments classified as available-for- sale.

Impairment losses are also not subsequently reversed for available-for-sale equity 
investments which are held at cost because fair value was not determinable.

Where financial assets are impaired through use of an allowance account, the amount of 
the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit within operating expenses. When such assets 
are written off, the write off is made against the relevant allowance account. Subsequent 
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses.

Loans to (from) economic entities

These include loans to and from controlling entities, fellow controlled entities, controlled 
entities, joint ventures and associates and are recognised initially at fair value plus direct 
transaction costs.

Loans to economic entities are classified as loans and receivables.

Loans from economic entities are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost.

Loans to employees

These financial assets are classified as loans and receivables.

Receivables from exchange transactions

Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate 
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in surplus or deficit when 
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial difficulties of 
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, 
and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered 
indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as 
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated 
future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and 
the amount of the deficit is recognised in surplus or deficit within operating expenses. 
When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account for 
trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited 
against operating expenses in surplus or deficit.

Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.

Payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other 
short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of 
cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are initially and 
subsequently recorded at fair value.
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1.5 LEASES

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the 
classification of each element separately.

1.6 CONSUMABLES

Consumables are initially measured at cost except where consumables are acquired 
through a non-exchange transaction, then their costs are their fair value as at the date 
of acquisition.

Subsequently consumables are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Consumables are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they 
are held for;
• distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or
• consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for 

a nominal charge.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less 
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, 
exchange or distribution.

Current replacement cost is the cost the entity incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting 
date.

The cost of consumables comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other 
costs incurred in bringing the consumables to their present location and condition.

The cost of consumables of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods 
or services produced and segregated for specific projects is assigned using specific 
identification of the individual costs.

The cost of consumables is assigned using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) formula. The same 
cost formula is used for all consumables having a similar nature and use to the entity.

When consumables are sold, the carrying amounts of those consumables are recognised 
as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. If there is no 
related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are distributed, or related 
services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of consumables to net realisable 
value or current replacement cost and all losses of consumables are recognised as an 
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any 
write-down of consumables, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current 
replacement cost, are recognised as a reduction in the amount of consumables recognised 
as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

1.7 IMPAIRMENT OF CASH-GENERATING ASSETS

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the entity with the primary objective of 
generating a commercial return. When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with 
that adopted by a profit-orientated entity, it generates a commercial return.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over 
and above the systematic recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits 
or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of 
financial position after deducting any accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses thereon.
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1.7    IMPAIRMENT OF CASH-GENERATING ASSETS (CONTINUED)

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets held with the primary 
objective of generating a commercial return that generates cash inflows from continuing 
use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of 
assets.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, 
excluding finance costs and income tax expense.

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an 
asset over its useful life.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s 
length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less 
costs to sell and its value in use. 

Useful life is either:
(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the entity; or
(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the 

asset by the entity.

1.8 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-CASH-GENERATING ASSETS

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the entity with the primary objective of 
generating a commercial return. When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with 
that adopted by a profit-orientated entity, it generates a commercial return.

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over 
and above the systematic recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits 
or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of 
financial position after deducting any accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses thereon.

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets held with the primary 
objective of generating a commercial return that generates cash inflows from continuing 
use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of 
assets.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, 
excluding finance costs and income tax expense.

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an 
asset over its useful life.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s 
length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset’s fair value less 
costs to sell and its value in use. 

Useful life is either:
(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the entity; or
(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the 

asset by the entity.
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1.9 SHARE CAPITAL / CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an 
entity after deducting all of its liabilities.

1.10 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after 
the service is rendered, such as paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-
monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which the service 
is rendered and are not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees 
render services that increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating 
absences, when the absence occurs.

The expected cost of surplus sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense 
when there is a legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past 
performance.

Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as 
they fall due.

Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) retirement benefit schemes are 
dealt with as defined contribution plans where the entity’s obligation under the schemes 
is equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan.

The entity operates a defined contribution plan, the assets of which are held in a separate 
trustee administered fund. The pension fund is funded by payments from the entity, 
taking into account the commendations of independent qualified actuaries. 

The entity’s contributions to the defined contribution plan are charged to the statement 
of financial performance in the year to which they relate.

The entity also has employees who are members of the Government Employee Pension 
Fund (GEPF). Contributions to the GEPF are charged to the statement of financial 
performance in the year to which they relate as part of cost of employment. The entity 
has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the GEPF does not 
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees their benefit relating to employee service in 
the current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the entity pays contributions to publicly and private 
administrated pension insurance plans on a contractual basis. Once the contributions 
have been paid, the entity has no further payment obligations. The regular contributions 
constitute net periodic costs for the year in which they are due, as such are included in 
staff costs.

The accruals for employee entitlements to wages, salaries, annual and sick leave 
represent the amount that the entity has a present obligation to pay as a result of 
employees’ services provided up to the reporting date. The accruals have been calculated 
at undiscounted amounts based on current wage and salary rates.

1.11 PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES

Provisions are recognised when:
• the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service 

potential will be required to settle the obligation; and
• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required 
to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the 
present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
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1.11    PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be 
reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is 
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. 
The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the 
reimbursement does not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to 
reflect the passage of time. This increase is recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised. 

Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits.

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under 
the contract is recognised and measured as a provision.

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity:
• has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least:

 - the activity/operating unit or part of a activity/operating unit concerned;
 - the principal locations affected;
 - the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will 
                 be compensated for services being terminated;
 - the expenditures that will be undertaken; and
 - when the plan will be implemented; and

• has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring 
by starting to implement that plan or announcing its main features to those affected 
by it.

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the 
restructuring, which are those that are both:
• necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and
• not associated with the ongoing activities of the entity

No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation 
until the entity is committed to the sale or transfer, that is, there is a binding 
arrangement.

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in entity combinations 
that are recognised separately are subsequently measured at the higher of:
• the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and
• the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are 
disclosed in note 25.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified 
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to 
make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt 
instrument.

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and 
conditions.

The entity recognises a provision for financial guarantees and loan commitments when 
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and service 
potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation 
can be made.
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1.11    PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Determining whether an outflow of resources is probable in relation to financial guarantees 
requires judgement. Indications that an outflow of resources may be probable are:
• financial difficulty of the debtor;
• defaults or delinquencies in interest and capital repayments by the debtor;
• breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earlier 

than the agreed term and the ability of the debtor to settle its obligation on the 
amended terms; and

• a decline in prevailing economic circumstances (e.g. high interest rates, inflation and 
unemployment) that impact on the ability of entities to repay their obligations.

Where a fee is received by the entity for issuing a financial guarantee and/or where a 
fee is charged on loan commitments, it is considered in determining the best estimate 
of the amount required to settle the obligation at reporting date. Where a fee is charged 
and the entity considers that an outflow of economic resources is probable, an entity 
recognises the obligation at the higher of:
• the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent 

Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and
• the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative 

amortisation recognised in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from 
Exchange Transactions.

1.12 REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting 
period when those inflows result in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating 
to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has 
liabilities extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the 
form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, 
between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

Measurement

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of 
trade discounts and volume rebates.

Rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated 
reliably, revenue as(SOC)iated with the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage 
of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome of a transaction can 
be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:
• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential as(SOC)iated with the 

transaction will flow to the entity;
• the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured 

reliably; and
• the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can 

be measured reliably.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time 
frame, revenue is recognised on a straight line basis over the specified time frame unless 
there is evidence that some other method better represents the stage of completion. 
When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of 
revenue is postponed until the significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be 
estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised 
that are recoverable.
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1.12    REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction 
at the reporting date. Stage of completion is determined by services performed to date 
as a percentage of total services to be performed.

1.13 REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and 
receivable by an entity, which represents an increase in net assets, other than increases 
relating to contributions from owners.

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic 
benefits or service potential embodied in the asset is required to be consumed by the 
recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned 
to the transferor.

Control of an asset arise when the entity can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in 
pursuit of its objectives and can exclude or otherwise regulate the access of others to 
that benefit.

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or 
has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the 
form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in exchange.

Expenses paid through the tax system are amounts that are available to beneficiaries 
regardless of whether or not they pay taxes.

Fines are economic benefits or service potential received or receivable by entities, as 
determined by a court or other law enforcement body, as a consequence of the breach of 
laws or regulations.

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a 
non-exchange transaction, an entity either receives value from another entity without 

directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to another entity 
without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for 
which a transferred asset may be used, but do not specify that future economic benefits 
or service potential is required to be returned to the transferor if not deployed as specified.

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding 
arrangement, imposed upon the use of a transferred asset by entities external to the 
reporting entity.

Tax expenditures are preferential provisions of the tax law that provide certain taxpayers 
with concessions that are not available to others.

The taxable event is the event that the government, legislature or other authority has 
determined will be subject to taxation.

Taxes are economic benefits or service potential compulsorily paid or payable to entities, 
in accordance with laws and or regulations, established to provide revenue to government. 
Taxes do not include fines or other penalties imposed for breaches of the law.

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange 
transactions, other than taxes.

Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is 
recognised as revenue, except to the extent that a liability is also recognised in respect 
of the same inflow.

As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow 
of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the 
carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of revenue equal 
to that reduction.
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1.12    REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in 
net assets recognised by the entity.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also 
recognises revenue equivalent to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at 
the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability. Where a liability 
is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount 
required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase 
in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is subsequently reduced, 
because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction 
in the liability is recognised as revenue.

Transfers

Apart from services in kind, which are not recognised, the entity recognises an asset in 
respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and 
satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.

The entity recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources 
meet the definition of an asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.

Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

1.14 INVESTMENT INCOME

Investment income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest 
method.

1.15 BORROWING COSTS

It is inappropriate to capitalise borrowing costs when, and only when, there is clear 
evidence that it is difficult to link the borrowing requirements of an entity directly to the 
nature of the expenditure to be funded i.e. capital or current.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

1.16 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in 
presentation in the current year.

1.17 UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE

Unauthorised expenditure means:
• overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and
• expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main 

division, not in accordance with the purpose of the main division.

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in 
the statement of financial performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. 
The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where 
recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial 
performance.

1.18 FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been 
avoided had reasonable care been exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense 
in the statement of financial performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. 
The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where 
recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial 
performance.
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1.19 IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than 
unauthorised expenditure, incurred in contravention of or that is not in accordance with a 
requirement of any applicable legislation, including -

(a) this Act; or
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations 

made in terms of the Act; or
(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that 

provincial government.

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 
76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA requires the following (effective from 1 April 2008):

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial 
and which was condoned before year end and/or before finalisation of the financial 
statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In 
such an instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the 
note to the financial statements.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year 
and for which condonement is being awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular 
expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception of updating the 
note to the financial statements.

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only 
condoned in the following financial year, the register and the disclosure note to the 
financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned.
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial 
year and which was not condoned by the National Treasury or the relevant authority 
must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the 
irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if 
such a person is liable in law. Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover the 
amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting officer 

or accounting authority may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose 
such in the relevant note to the financial statements. The irregular expenditure register 
must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not been condoned 
and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the 
relevant programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial 
statements and updated accordingly in the irregular expenditure register.

1.20 BUDGET INFORMATION

Entities are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget 
authorisations (or equivalent), which is given effect through authorising legislation, 
appropriation or similar.

General purpose financial reporting by the entity shall provide information on whether 
resources were obtained and used in accordance with the legally adopted budget.

The approved budget is prepared on a cash basis and presented by economic classification 
linked to performance outcome objectives.

The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 01/04/2013 to 31/03/2014.

The budget for the economic entity includes all the entities approved budgets under its 
control.

The financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore 
a comparison with the budgeted amounts for the reporting period have been included in 
the Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

ACOUNTING POLICIES
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1.21 RELATED PARTIES

The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African Government. As a consequence of the constitutional 
independence of the three spheres of government in South Africa, only entities within the national sphere of government are considered to be related parties.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, including those charged with the governance of the entity in accordance 
with legislation, in instances where they are required to perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that management in their dealings with 
the entity.

Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed.

ACOUNTING POLICIES
To the Provincial Legislature of Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd 
Report on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014
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2. NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

2.1 STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS EFFECTIVE AND ADOPTED IN THE CURRENT YEAR

In the current year, the entity has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current financial year and that are relevant to its operations:

Standard/ Interpretation:   Effective date:    Expected impact:
   Years beginning on 
   or after

● GRAP 25: Employee benefits                             01 April 2013    No material impact expected

● GRAP 1 (as revised 2012): Presentation of Financial Statements  01 April 2013    No material impact expected

● GRAP 3 (as revised 2012): Accounting Policies,     01 April 2013    No material impact expected
 Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors   

● GRAP 9 (as revised 2012): Revenue from Exchange Transactions  01 April 2013    No material impact expected

● GRAP 12 (as revised 2012): Inventories                             01 April 2013    No material impact expected

● GRAP 13 (as revised 2012): Leases                             01 April 2013    No material impact expected

● GRAP 17 (as revised 2012): Property, Plant and Equipment                                   01 April 2013    No material impact expected

● GRAP 31 (as revised 2012): Intangible Assets (Replaces GRAP 102)                      01 April 2013    No material impact expected

● IGRAP16: Intangible assets website costs                                  01 April 2013    No material impact expected

● IGRAP1 (as revised 2012):Applying the probability test                                 01 April 2013    No material impact expected
 on initial recognition of revenue                   

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.2 STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED, BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for the entity’s accounting periods beginning on or 
after 01 April 2014 or later periods:

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date:      Expected impact:
Years beginning on or after

● GRAP 20: Related parties 01 April 2014     No material impact expected

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT     

          2014            2013

       Cost / Valuation          Accumulated   Carrying value       Cost / Valuation  Accumulated            Carrying value
                depreciation         depreciation 
             and accumulated                    and accumulated 
                impairment                         impairment

Land 3,700 - 3,700 3,700 - 3,700

Buildings 75,796 (19,752) 56,044 75,796 (18,482) 57,314

Furniture and fixtures 4,046 (3,621) 425 3,977 (3,395) 582

Motor vehicles 305 (305) - 305 (305) -

Office equipment 1,114 (978) 136 1,002 (889) 113

IT equipment 9,654 (7,969) 1,685 9,293 (6,852) 2,441

Computer software 1,209 (989) 220 1,106 (987) 119

Roads and bridges 47,548,031 (16,881,682) 30,666,349 47,512,500 (14,499,818) 33,012,682

PPE under construction 1,889,567 - 1,889,567 1,552,830 - 1,552,830

Total 49,533,422 (16,915,296) 32,618,126 49,160,509 (14,530,728) 34,629,781

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2014

R’000
Opening Balance

R’000
Additions

R’000 
Disposals

R’000
Depreciation

R’000
Total

Land 3,700 - - - 3,700

Buildings 57,314 - - (1,270) 56,044

Furniture and fixtures 582 68 - (225) 425

Office equipment 113 112 - (89) 136

IT equipment 2,441 381 (161) (976) 1,685

Computer software 119 268 (5) (162) 220

Roads and bridges 33,012,682 35,530 - (2,381,863) 30,666,349

PPE under construction 1,552,830 336,737 - - 1,889,567

34,629,781 373,096 (166) (2,384,585) 32,618,126

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2013

R’000
Opening balance

R’000
Additions

R’000
Disposals

R’000
Transfers

R’000
Depreciation

R’000
Total

Land 3,700 - - - - 3,700

Buildings 61,104 - - - (3,790) 57,314

Furniture and fixtures 737 - - - (155) 582

Motor vehicles 4 - - - (4) -

Office equipment 165 27 - - (79) 113

IT equipment 3,167 386 (5) - (1,107) 2,441

Computer software 235 43 - - (159) 119

Roads and bridges 35,055,009 42,841 (11,412) 492,256 (2,566,012) 33,012,682

PPE under construction 1,414,133 631,008 (55) (492,256) - 1,552,830

36,538,254 674,305 (11,472) - (2,571,306) 34,629,781

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1   PPE UNDER CONSTRUCTION

PPE under construction refers to capital expenditure on roads and bridges such as strengthening, improvements and new roads. These projects are still in progress as at 
the reporting date.

3.2  BUILDINGS

The building are situated on land with erf number 13548 measuring 2 124 square meters located in Pietersburg Township with the registration division L.S.; Limpopo 
Province.

3.3  FULLY DEPRECIATED ASSETS

The gross carrying amount of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment that was still in use as at year-end amounted to R10 584 591 (2013: R8 283 997)

4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

   2014 2013

Cost / Valuation
R’000

Accumulated 
amortisation 

and accumulated 
impairment

R’000

Carrying value
R’000

Cost / Valuation
R’000

Accumulated 
amortisation 

and accumulated 
impairment

R’000

Carrying value
R’000

Website design cost  1,661 (1,648)  13 1,661 (1,567)  94
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Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2014 

             Opening balance                     Amortisation                Total
Website design cost                                                94                             (81)     13

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2013
             Opening balance            Amortisation                Total

Website design cost                                              174                                             (80)                    94

5. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Designated at fair value
Other loans and receivables 2,260 2,270

Long-term receivables relates to refundable payments made to the Department of Minerals and Energy for borrow 
pits on the entity’s projects.

 Non-current assets
 Designated at amortised cost 2,260 2,270

6. CONSUMABLES

 Consumables on hand 261 371

 Consumables at year end consists of office stationery.

 The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in ‘general expenses’ amounted to R 85 536 (2013:  R 218 902).

    

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Figures in Rand thousand 2014 2013

7. STUDY LOANS

  Loans to employees

  At beginning of the year 123 273

  Repayments (15) (150)

 108 123

  The loans are advanced  to employees for study purposes. These loans bear no interest and are repayable once study results have been received. Loans to employees who    
  pass their exams are expensed once academic results have been submitted.

8. RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

  Trade debtors 482 404

  Prepayments - 46

  Interest receivable 995 1,417

  Other receivable 115 -

1,592 1,867

  Trade debtors consist of amounts receivable from customers renting advertising space on billboards.

  Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired

  Trade and other receivables which are less than 3 months past due are not considered to be impaired. At 31 March 2014, R - (2013: R 64,000) were past due but not impaired.

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:

1 month past due - 7

2 months past due - 8

3 months past due - 49

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Figures in Rand thousand 2014 2013

   
8.       RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED).

Trade and other receivables impaired

As of 31 March 2014, trade and other receivables of R 51 748 (2013: R 51,748) were impaired and provided for.

 The amount of the provision was R 51 748 as of 31 March 2014 (2013: R 51,748).

  The ageing of these loans is as follows:

 3 to 6 months - 18

 Over 6 months 51 33

 Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

 Opening balance 51 51

9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

  Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

   Cash on hand 2 10

 Bank balances 405,999 320,718

406,001 320,728

10.  SHARE CAPITAL / CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

  Authorised 
  1000 Ordinary shares of R1 each 1 1

 Shares are held by the MEC of the Department of  Roads and Transport in Limpopo. In subsequent 2014/15 financial year the shares will be held by the MEC of Public Works  Roads       
 and Infrastructure.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Figures in Rand thousand 2014 2013

11. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

At amortised cost
Other financial liability - 930

Amount is payable to the Waterberg district municipality and relates to a saving on prior year projects that were managed on behalf of the district municipality.

Legal settlement - 16,085

Interest on legal settlement - 15,475

The legal settlement and interest amounts are payable to a contractor who claimed payment from RAL for costs incurred on a project that was suspended due to pending 
court cases.  The matter was referred to arbitration and the arbitrator issued his final order on 25 April 2013.

- 32,490

Current liabilities
Designated at amortised cost - 32,490

12. PROVISIONS

Reconciliation of provisions - 2014

Opening Balance Additions Utilised during the year Reversed during the year Total

Legal proceedings  2,000  - - (2,000) -

Leave provision 2,125  943 (1,134)  -  1,934

 4,125 943 (1,134) (2,000) 1,934

Reconciliation of provisions - 2013
Opening Balance   Additions Total

Legal proceedings - 2,000 2,000

Leave provision 2,042 83 2,125

2,042 2,083 4,125
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Legal proceedings provisions

A contractor claimed payment from RAL for costs incurred on a project that was suspended due to pending court cases. The matter was referred to arbitration and the 
arbitrator issued his final order on 25 April 2013.  The amount for legal costs has been provided as the amount of legal costs payable is uncertain.

13. PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Trade payables 16,300 14,037

Retention fees 17,387 19,852

Other payables 66 -

13th Cheque 666 682

Accrued expense 191 3,118

Employee accruals 281 1,129

34,891 38,818

14. TAX

No taxation has been provided for as the entity is exempted from income tax, in terms of Section 10(1)(cA)(ii) of the Income Tax Act, 1962.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Figures in Rand thousand 2014 2013

15. REVENUE

  Other income 15,841 7,653

  Government grants & subsidies 519,084 1,235,812

  Roads and bridges constructed by other entities 35,530 42,841

570,455 1,286,306

   The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services are as follows:
   Other income 15,841 7,653

   The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as follows:
   Transfer revenue
   Government grants & subsidies 519,084 1,235,812

   Roads and bridges constructed by other entities 35,530 42,841

554,614 1,278,653

16. GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES

   Equitable share projects 353,397 1,167,502

   Equitable share administration 165,687 68,310

519,084 1,235,812

17. OTHER REVENUE
   Other income 15,841 7,653
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Figures in Rand thousand 2014 2013

18. OTHER INCOME
    Applications 653 892

    Rental income 2,956 2,422

    Tender income 159 38

    Interest received 12,073 4,301

15,841 7,653
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19. GENERAL EXPENSES
Accomodation 395 79

Advertising 1,363 305

Auditors remuneration 1,608 1,309

Bank charges 28 26

Cleaning 598 544

Computer expenses 34 4

Consulting and professional fees 5,696 5,297

Consumables 167 237

Entertainment 22 -

Insurance 457 459

Conferences and seminars 136 17

IT expenses 23 23

Lease rentals on operating lease 155 193

Motor vehicle expenses 38 25

Placement fees 328 16

Postage and courier 8 7

Printing and stationery 917 240

Security 600 560

Subscriptions and membership fees 506 89

Telephone and fax 584 660

Training 293 11

Travel - local 156 181

Assets expensed 19 -

Electricity 581 566

Bursaries 258 1,053

Court settlements 1,686 3,479

Non-capital project cost 4,996 25,972

Subsistence and travel costs 2,964 4,425

Internal audit fees 249 267

24,865 46,044
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Figures in Rand thousand 2014 2013

20. EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS
Basic 40,981 35,390

Medical aid - company contributions 576 1,818

UIF 129 236

Leave pay provision charge 94 213

Post-employment benefits - Pension 3,495 4,897

Overtime payments 54 -

Long-service awards 10 -

13th Cheques 2,121 2,099

47,460 44,653

Directors and executive directors emoluments
JR Bilankulu, PR Masehela and MM Mokonyama (non-executive directors) was paid by the Department of Transport during the current and previous financial year.

Non-Executive Directors Salary or Fee

Bonuses and 
performance 

related 
payments

Acting 
allowances

Leave payout
Subsistence 

and travel
Travel and 

housing

Medical and 
pension 

contributions

Total package 
2014

total package 
2013

MM Maponya 315 - 319 - 30 - - 664 485

MP Tshisevhe 399 - - - 24 - - 423 409

TM Makofane 320 - - - 20 - - 341 201

TL Mazibuko 258 - - - 21 - - 280 24

1,292 - 319 - 95 - - 1,708 1,119
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Figures in Rand thousand 2014 2013

20.   EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS (CONTINUED)

Directors and executive managers emoluments

Executive Managers Salary or Fee

Bonuses and 
performance 

related 
payments

Acting 
allowances

Leave payout
Subsistence 

and travel
Travel and 

housing

Medical and 
pension 

contributions

Total package 
2014

total package 
2013

XC Manyungwana (Acting CEO) - - 505 - - - - 505 159
MI Motsepe (Acting CFO) - - 386 - - - - 386 121

MI Motsepe (Acting CEO) - - 1,514 - - - - 1,514 -

ML Mabuku (Acting CFO) 1,002 - - - 32 - - 1,035 132

N Northnagel (Engineering 
Executive Manager)

1,016 83 - - 85 - - 1,184 1,452

R Rikhotso (Senior Planning 
Manager)

658 54 - - 126 - 111 949 -

L Sefolo (CIO) 362 46 - 25 7 - 69 508 977

RC Ramodike 675 66 - - 51 - 101 894 971

NK Mflatela 99 - - - 7 - 8 115 -

TF Madale 615 76 - 123 10 - 8 832 1,480

4,427 325 2,405 148 318 - 297 7,922 5,012

5,719 325 2,724 148 413 - 297 9,630 6,131
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Figures in Rand thousand 2014 2013

21. FINANCE COSTS

Other interest paid 1,197 17

Provision for interest on arbitration - 15,475

1,197 15,492

22. NON-CAPITAL PROJECT COST
Other project related costs 4,996 25,972

23. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Deficit 
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation

(1,888,265)

2,384,665

(1,403,122)

2,571,723

Gain on sale of assets and liabilities 3 11,417

Debt impairment 187 52

Movements in provisions (2,191) 2,083

Bridges constructed by other entities 
Changes in working capital: 
Consumables

(35,530)

110

(42,841)

219

Receivables from exchange transactions 275 (1,449)

Consumer debtors (187) (52)

Payables from exchange transactions (818) (227,484)

458,249 910,546
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Figures in Rand thousand 2014 2013

24. COMMITMENTS
Authorised capital expenditure

Capital commitments contracted as at the Balance sheet date
● Contracts 998,321 268,323

Capital commitments will be financed from grants to be received from the Government in 2014/15 and 2015/16 financial years as well as cash on hand.

Operating leases - as lessee (expense)

Minimum lease payments due
- within one year 94,859 -

- in second to fifth year inclusive 110,669 -

205,528 -

The entity leases photo copiers from Nashua for a period of 3 years, effective from 1 June 2013. The lease payment is R 7 905 per month with no annual escalation. No contingent 
rent is payable. The lease agreement is not renewable at the end of the lease term. There were no defaults or breaches and no terms or conditions were renegotiated during the 
reporting period.

25.   CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSESTS

At 31 March 2014, the entity had contingent liabilities in respect of legal cases pending for an amount of R 70 768 122 (2013: R115 065 000). Of this some are dormant and 
others are being appealed, pending finalisation in the 2014/15 financial year.

As at 31 March 2014, the entity had contingent assets amounting to R 30 094 703 (2013:  R30 094 703) related to claims against various parties. Based on the legal advice the 
success of these claims seems probable.

At 31 March 2014, the entity was not registered for VAT as there is uncertainty as to whether the entity should register for VAT.  According to management’s assessment, it 
is unlikely that the entity will need to register for VAT.  Output VAT might be payable to SARS on Billboard revenue.  The amount payable cannot be determined as we do not 
know from which period VAT should have been applied. This is pending clarification from the Minister of Finance.
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Figures in Rand thousand 2014 2013

26.   RELATED PARTIES
Relationships
Directors Refer to directors report note 5

Controlling entity Department of Roads and 
Transport

Related entity Gateway Airport Authority Limited

Accounting Authority MM Mokonyama

Related party transactions

Grant income received
Department of Roads and Transport 519,084 1,235,812

Directors’ and Executive Managers emoluments are disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.

RAL received a transfer payment of R 519 084 (2013: R1 235 812) funding for its administrative activities and capital projects from the Limpopo Department of Transport. 
There were no amounts owing to or by RAL to the Limpopo Department of Transport at year end.

RAL paid R2 405 000 (2013: R281 000) to the National Department of Transport  for the acting CEO and acting CFO who were seconded to RAL during the year.  RAL owed the 
National Department of Transport R2 686 000 (2013: R281 000) for the service received at year end.

27. CHANGE IN ESTIMATE 

Property, plant and equipment

During 2013/14 roads and bridges were inspected to determine the Visual Conditions Index (“VCI”). The VCI is used to estimate the useful life of all roads and bridges. The 
updated VCI index had an effect on the depreciation that was written off during the current year.

The effect of this revision has increased the depreciation charges for the current period by R3 082 810 ( 2013: R 12 765 467).
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Figures in Rand thousand 2014 2013

28.   PRIOR PERIOD ERRORS
During the year under review, the Agency appointed a consultant to perform a detailed verification of its infrastructure assets to update the Agency’s Road Maintenance and 
Management System (“RMMS”).  Several errors were identified during this verification process. These include amongst others:

- Roads and bridges constructed by other entities on the RAL road network.  These infrastructure assets were not previously accounted for in the Agency’s asset 
register;

- Roads that were incorrectly recorded in the Agency’s register as being paved, but that were not paved;
- Road links (both paved and unpaved) that were not previously accounted for in the Agency’s register.

Project costs relating to the prior year was incorrectly captured in the current year.

These errors have been corrected retrospectively. The impact of the correction is shown below:

Statement of Financial Position 2013 2012
Property, plant and equipment 152,501 3,312,088

Payables from exchange transactions (3,108) -

Opening Accumulated Surplus or Deficit (149,393) (3,312,088)

Statement of Financial Performance

Depreciation expense
192,234 -

Revenue from non-exchange transactions (42,841) -
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Figures in Rand thousand 2014 2013

29.   RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk management

The entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit 
risk and liquidity risk.

The entity’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the entity’s financial 
performance.

Treasury regulations require the entity to facilitate a risk assessment to determine the material risks to which the entity may be exposed to and to evaluate the strategy for 
managing these risks. A risk assessment exercise is therefore conducted for the whole organisation on an annual basis, with the assistance of the entity’s internal auditors. 
These risk factors form the basis of the internal audit annual coverage plan.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities to meet the commitments of the entity. Liquidity risk is managed through 
the budget process and by monitoring actual expenditure against the approved budget.

The entity’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future 
commitments and credit facilities.

The table below analyses the entity’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the statement of financial position to the contractual 
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of 
discounting is not significant.

At 31 March 2014 Less than 1 year Between 1 and 2 
years

Between 2 and 5 
years

Over 5 years

Trade and other payables 34,891 - - -
     

At 31 March 2013 Less than 1 year Between 1 and 2 
years

Between 2 and 5 
years

Over 5 years

Trade and other payables 38,818 - - -

Other financial liabilities 32,490 - - -
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Figures in Rand thousand 2014 2013

Credit risk 

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade debtors. The entity only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits 
exposure to any one counter-party. Credit risk is limited as the entity is not a trading entity.

Trade receivables comprise of sundry debtors and staff loans. Credit risk relating to staff loans is managed by deducting payments due by employees from their monthly 
salaries.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

Financial instrument 2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents 406,005 320,728

Loans and other receivables 1,700 1,990

Non current receivables 2,260 2,270

Interest rate risk

The  entity had a significant interest-bearing assets which was invested and generated income for the entity, the entity’s income and operating cash flows are substantially 
independent of changes in market interest rates.

The entity’s major source of revenue is government grants and to a lesser extent, interest income depending on cash equivalents held. A major expense is salaries which are 
fixed for a financial year.

The basis points increases or decreases, as detailed in the table below, were determined by management and represent management’s assessment of the reasonably 
possible change in interest rates.The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on financial instruments exposure to interest rates at reporting date.

2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents (Upward change) 1% 410,065 323,935

Cash and cash equivalents (Down-ward change) 1% 401,945 317,520

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Figures in Rand thousand 2014 2013

30.   FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE
   Opening balance 3,379 3,363

   Interest charged on payments made late 1,193 16

   Reprinting of the Annual Report 198 -

   Penalty due to late non-rendition of return of earnings to Workmen’s Compensation 4 -

4,774 3,379

31.   IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE
   Opening balance 1,482,922 593,486

   Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year - 889,436

1,482,922 1,482,922

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
To the Provincial Legislature of Roads Agency Limpopo (SOC) Ltd 
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